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October 31, 2022

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

High Bridge School District

County of Hunterdon, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The annual comprehensive financial report of the High Bridge School District (the "District") for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education (the
"Board"). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material
respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the basic financial statements and results of
operations of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's
financial activities have been included.

The annual comprehensive financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical and
single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart and a list
of principal officials. The financial section includes the Independent Auditors’ Report, the management’s
discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements and notes providing an overview of the District’s financial
position and operating results, and supplementary schedules providing detailed budgetary information. The
statistical section includes selected economic and demographic information, financial trends and the fiscal
capacity of the District, generally presented on a multi- year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual
single audit in conformity with the provisions of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the New Jersey’s
OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.
Information related to this single audit, including the auditors' reports on the internal control and compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grants along with findings and questioned costs, are included in the
single audit section of this report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The High Bridge School District is an independent reporting
entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) in codification
section 2100. All funds of the District are included in this report. The High Bridge School District and all its
schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Preschool through 8. These
include regular as well as special education for classified children.

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

The Borough of High Bridge has a population of about 5,000. It extends 5.94 square miles, and is a small suburban
community. It is primarily residential with small percentages of its land dedicated for commercial business and
open space. The Mayor and Council have worked diligently to develop and upgrade the downtown business area
by creating a merchant center through zoning changes and incentives. This combined effort has resulted in a much
more picturesque Main Street.
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3) MAJOR INITIATIVES:

The Borough of High Bridge, a Preschool through Grade Eight, two-school district, takes great pride in the
provision of a rigorous, high quality and inclusive educational program.

Major district initiatives include the following:

e Expansion of the preschool program from four (4) full day sessions to five (5) full day sessions, saving
our families thousands of dollars.

e Expanded preschool playground funded by PEA.

e Implement Multi-Tiered System Support (MTSS) academic and behavioral support. The program
design includes professional development (pd), academic and behavioral support.

e Enhance our second year of the new reading series for grades Kindergarten through Second Grade.
American Reading Company will provide trainers to instruct and mentor teaching staff, for grades
Three-Five for the current year.

e The elementary school will continue to utilize Leadership for All as our Social/Emotional Program
expanding the program with lunch bunch and grade/building level activities.

e  Our middle and elementary schools are working at identifying gaps during online learning due to
COVID-19.

e Provide remediation for students who are identified as at-risk due to COVID-19.

e All middle school students will participate in One Book One School to foster empathy, openness and
kindness.

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an internal control system designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss,
theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived;
and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state awards, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate
internal control system is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those
programs. This internal control system is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District's management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal
control system, including that portion related to major federal and state award programs, as well as to determine
that the District has complied with applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary
controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the annual appropriated budget approved by a vote of the Board of Education. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund and the debt service fund. Project length budgets are
approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as
amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.
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An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis.
Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund balance in the
subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as restrictions, commitments and/or
assignments of fund balance at June 30, 2022.

6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted
accounting principles, as promulgated by the GASB. The accounting system of the District is organized on the
basis of funds. These funds are explained in "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements", Note 1.

7) CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as
detailed in "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements", Note 3. The District has adopted a cash management plan
which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental
units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires
governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are
secured in accordance with the Act.

8) RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including, but not limited to, general
liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents,
and fidelity bonds. The Board is a member of the School Alliance Insurance Fund (“SAIF”). SAIF is a risk-
sharing public entity risk management pool that is both an insured and self-administered group of school districts
established for the purpose of providing low-cost insurance coverage to their members. A schedule of insurance
coverage is found on J-20.

9) OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Nisivoccia LLP CPAs, was selected by the Board of
Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08, Single
Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. The auditor's report on the basic
financial statements and specific required supplementary information is included in the financial section of this
report. The auditors' reports related specifically to the single audit and Government Auditing Standards are
included in the single audit section of this report.

10) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the High Bridge
Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school
district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation.
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of
the financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

// =z .

Gregory A. Hobaugh, Ed.D. Karolina Cywa/
Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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.d ASSURANCE - TAX - ADVISORY nisivoccia.com

Independent Member
BKR International

Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

High Bridge School District

County of Hunterdon, New Jersey

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Quualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the High Bridge School District (the
“District”) in the County of Hunterdon, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the District, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS), audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey (the “Office”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

Matter Giving Rise to Qualified Opinion

The District’s note disclosure on postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) (Note 17) contains the
June 30, 2020 information and not the June 30, 2021 information as the report for Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, for the State of New Jersey State Health Benefits Local Education Retired Employees Plan
(“SHBP”) has not been released by the Division of Pensions and Benefits, Department of the Treasury, State of
New Jersey (the “Division”), as of the date of this report. The District is in a “special funding situation” in that
the OPEB contributions, expenses and related liability are the sole responsibility of the State of New Jersey, not
the District and therefore does not affect the District’s net position. An estimated release date for the June 30,
2021 OPEB information has not been announced by the Division. In our opinion, disclosure of this information
is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases,
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements
prescribed by the Office will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements
prescribed by the Office, we:

+ exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

+ identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

+ obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

+ evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

+ conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, which follows this report, the pension and post-retirement schedules in Exhibits L-1
through L-5 and the related notes, and the budgetary comparison information in Exhibits C-1 through C-3 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, are required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The Schedule of Changes in the State’s Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability Associated with the
District and Related Ratios (Exhibit L-5) do not contain the June 30, 2021 OPEB information as the related GASB
No. 75 report for SHBP has not been released by the State as of the date of this report. The District is in a “special
funding situation” in that the OPEB contributions, expenses and related liability are the sole responsibility of the
State of New Jersey, not the District and therefore does not affect the District’s net position. An estimated release
date for the June 30, 2021 OPEB information has not been announced by the Division. This required
supplementary information is required to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Such missing information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not
affected by this missing information.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information schedules and
the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards;
and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information schedules and the
schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.
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The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

High Bridge School District
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and
we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed,
we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe
it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2022 on
our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 31, 2022
Mount Arlington, New Jersey NISIVOCCIA LLP

nea o, a8
Francis Jon€s

Licensed Public School Accountant #1154
Certified Public Accountant
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High Bridge School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of High Bridge School District’s annual financial report presents its discussion and analysis of the
District’s financial performance during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with
the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District’s financial statements, which immediately follow
this section.

Using this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These statements are
organized so that the reader can understand the District as an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed
to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the entire
District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District’s finances and a longer-term view of those finances.
Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements show how
services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial
statements present all funds of the District. The General Fund is by far the most significant fund.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of
statements that present different views of the District:

o The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term
information about the District’s overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District,
reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

o The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education were
financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

e Proprietary funds statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the activities the
District operates like a business, such as food services.
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High Bridge School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide
more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further
explains and supports the financial statements with a comparison of the District’s budget for the year. Figure A-
1 shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.

Figure A-1
Organization of High Bridge School District’s Financial Report

Management's Basic Required
Discussion and Financial Supplementary
Analysis Statements Information
District-Wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of the
District’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section
of management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.
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High Bridge School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Figure A-2
Major Features of the District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements
District-Wide Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary
Funds
Entire District The activities of the District Activities the District
that are not proprietary, such operates similar to
Scope as special education and private businesses:
building maintenance food services
e Statement of net position e Balance sheet e Statement of net
e Statement of activities e Statement of revenue, position
Required expenditures, and changes | ¢  Statement of
Financial in fund balances revenue, expenses,
Statements and changes in net
position
e Statement of cash
flows
Accounting Accrual accounting and Modified accrual accounting Accrual accounting and
Basis and economic resources focus and current financial resources | economic resources
Measurement focus focus
Focus
All assets and liabilities, both Generally assets expected to All assets and
financial and be used up and liabilities that | liabilities, both
Type of capital, short-term and long-term | come due during the year or financial and capital,
Asset/Liability soon thereafter; no capital short-term and
Information assets, lease assets, or long- long-term
term liabilities included
All revenue and expenses during | Revenue for which cash is All revenue and
the year, regardless of when received during or soon after expenses during the
Type of cash is received or paid the end of the year; year, regardless of
Inflow/Outflow expenditures when goods or when cash is received
Information services have been received or paid

and the related liability is due
and payable
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High Bridge School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

District-wide Statements

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar
to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the District’s assets,
deferred inflows and outflows, and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenue and expenses are accounted for
in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District’s net position and how they have changed. Net position — the
difference between the District’s assets, deferred inflows and outflows, and liabilities — is one way to measure the
District’s financial health or position.

e Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial
position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the District’s overall health, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as
changes in the District’s property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other facilities.

In the district-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are divided into two categories:

o Governmental activities: Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as regular and
special education, transportation and administration. Property taxes and state formula aid finance most
of these activities.

e Business-type activities: The District charges fees to help it cover the costs of certain services it provides.
The District’s food service is included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds, focusing on its most
significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep
track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

e Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.
o The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (such as
repaying its long-term debts) or to show that is it properly using certain revenue (such as federal grants).

The District has two kinds of funds:

e Governmental funds: Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on {1} how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in
and out, and {2} the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the District-
wide statements, additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements explains the
relationship (or difference) between them.

e Proprietary funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements. The District’s
enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities but provide
more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The internal service funds (the other kind of
proprietary fund) report activities that provide supplies and services for its other programs and activities.
The District currently does not maintain any internal service funds.
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High Bridge School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements: Provide additional information essential to a full understanding of

District-wide and fund financial statements.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Net Position. The District’s combined net position was $8,613,390 on June 30, 2022, which was $1,962,165 or
29.50% greater than the prior year (See Figure A-3).

Figure A-3
Condensed Statement of Net Position
Total
Percentage
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total School District Change
2021/22 2020/21%* 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21%* 2021/22
Current and
Other Assets $ 5,397,392  $3916866 $ 95435 § 28,705 $5,492,827 $3,945,571
Capital Assets, Net 6,866,117 6,846,406 4,542 871 6,870,659 6,847,277
Lease Assets, Net 8,399 16,158 8,399 16,158
Total Assets 12,271,908 10,779,430 99,977 29,576 12,371,885 10,809,006 14.46%
Deferred Outflows
of Resources 236,908 373,289 236,908 373,289 -36.53%
Other Liabilities 652,714 742,376 11,625 6,991 664,339 749,367
Long-Term Liabilities
Outstanding 2,655,180 2,942,765 2,655,180 2,942,765
Total Liabilities 3,307,894 3,685,141 11,625 6,991 3,319,519 3,692,132 -10.09%
Deferred Inflows
of Resources 675,884 812,024 675,884 812,024 -16.77%
Net Position:
Net Investment in
Capital Assets 4,945,497 4,510,637 4,542 871 4,950,039 4,511,508
Restricted 3,499,883 2,792,395 3,499,883 2,792,395
Unrestricted/(Deficit) 79,658 (647,478) 83,810 21,714 163,468 (625,764)

Total Net Position $ 8,525,038  $6,655,554

§ 88352 § 22,585

$8,613,390  $6,678,139 28.98%

* Restated
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High Bridge School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Changes in Net Position. Net position from governmental activities increased $1,896,398 mostly due to increases
in state aid, and net position from business-type activities increased $65,767 due to revenues exceeding expenses

related to Food Service.

Figure A-4

Changes in Net Position from Operating Results

Revenue:

Program Revenue:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants

and Contributions

General Revenue:

Property Taxes
Other
Total Revenue

Expenses:
Instruction
Pupil and Instruction
Services
Administrative and
Business
Maintenance and
Operations
Pupil Transportation
Other
Total Expenses

Increase/(Decrease)
in Net Position

Governmental Activities

Total
Governmental Business-Type Total School Governmental Business-Type Total School Percentage
Activities Activities District Activities Activities District Change
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2021/22
$ 29,500 $ 6,400 $ 35,900 $ 33,996 $ 346§ 34,342
4,968,289 198,310 5,166,599 4,214,965 82,020 4,296,985
7,152,466 7,152,466 7,020,901 7,020,901
169,127 25 169,152 201,850 9 201,859
12,319,382 204,735 12,524,117 11,471,712 82,375 11,554,087 8.40%
7,307,904 7,307,904 6,437,786 6,437,786
1,448,221 1,448,221 1,531,094 1,531,094
638,570 638,570 675,000 675,000
899,716 899,716 1,043,166 1,043,166
18,740 18,740 14,175 14,175
109,833 138,968 248,801 129,917 70,083 200,000
10,422,984 138,968 10,561,952 9,831,138 70,083 9,901,221 6.67%
$ 1,896,398 § 65767 $ 1,962,165 $ 1,640,574 $§ 12,292 §$ 1,652,866 18.71%

As discussed elsewhere in this commentary, the financial position of the District improved significantly. The
District will continue sound fiscal management in order to maintain its existing programs, provide programs and
services for students with special needs and meet the rising costs of fixed obligations.

Careful management of expenses remains essential for the District to maintain its financial health.

Figure A-5 presents the cost of six major District activities:

functions.

instruction, pupil and instructional services,
administration and business, maintenance and operations, transportation and other expenses. The table also shows
each activity’s net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for
specific programs). The net cost shows the financial obligation placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these
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High Bridge School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The net cost shows the financial burden placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these functions:

Figure A-5
Net Cost of Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Net Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of

Services Services Services Services

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21
Instruction $ 7,307,904 $ 2,454,908 $ 6,437,786 $ 2,317,571
Pupil and Instruction Services 1,448,221 1,448,221 1,531,094 1,531,094
Administrative and Business 638,570 511,305 675,000 550,024
Maintenance and Operations 899,716 899,716 1,043,166 1,043,166
Transportation 18,740 1,212 14,175 10,405
Other 109,833 109,833 129,917 129,917

§ 10,422,984 $ 5,425,195 $ 9,831,138 $ 5,582,177

Business-Type Activities

Net position from the District’s business-type activity increased $65,767 (Refer to Figure A-4). Factors
contributing to these results included:

e Food service revenues exceeded expenses by $65,767 mostly due to the Seamless Summer Option
Program which resulted in revenues exceeding expenses related to the Food Service Fund which
accounted for the overall increase in the net position of the business-type activities.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

The District’s financial position improved during the year mostly due to a continued effort to be more efficient
concerning expenditures and an emphasis on budgetary savings. Programs were reduced in order to balance the
budget. The Board of Education meets monthly to review any items that may have a significant financial impact
on the District, and address each item accordingly.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. These budget
amendments were made up of changes made within budgetary line items for changes in school-based needs for
programs, supplies and equipment.

Page 19



High Bridge School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Capital Asset and Long Term Liabilities

Figure A-6
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
Percentage
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total School District Change
2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22
Land $ 4,826,600 § 4,826,600 $ 4,826,600 § 4,826,600
Site Improvements 91,349 98,592 91,349 98,592
Buildings and Building
Improvements 1,753,610 1,797,011 1,753,610 1,797,011
Furniture, Machinery, and
Equipment 194,558 124,203 $§ 4542 § 871 199,100 125,074
Total Capital Assets

(Net of Depreciation) $ 6,866,117 § 6,846,406 § 4542 § 871 $ 6,870,659 § 6,847,277 0.34%

Figure A-7
Outstanding Long-Term Liabilities
Percentage
Change
2021/22 2020/21* 2021/22
Bonds Payable $ 1,920,000 § 2,335,000
Net Pension Liability 681,607 931,740
Leases Payable 9,019 16,927
Compensated Absences Payable 44,554 82,006
$ 2,655,180 § 3,348,746 -20.71%
* Restated

Factors Bearing on the District’s Future Revenue/Expense Changes

It has proven to be a challenging year as we explored different avenues of saving money and reducing expenses.
A major concern is the continued reliance on local property taxes in light of possible state funding decreases. It
has become increasingly difficult for the District to maintain their level of service with the increases in property
tax rates. This problem appears to be statewide, and is not exclusive to High Bridge School District.

The District must allocate funds for “fixed” obligations, which increase from year to year. The State mandates
that two-tenths of one percent of the buildings’ value be set aside in the annual budget for “required” building
maintenance. A maintenance reserve account was established a few years ago to provide for unexpected building
repairs. In addition, the budget includes funds for repair and maintenance of the District’s equipment. Special
education programs and related services, including out of district placements and transportation, cannot be
predicted with certainty; however, the District maintains its commitment to meet the needs of these students. A
large cost savings is continued to be recognized from the District’s integrated preschool program which provides
services in district rather than paying the higher cost of out-of-district tuition.
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High Bridge School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Board of
Education Office, 40 Fairview Avenue, High Bridge, NJ 08829.
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 23



ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables from Other Governments:
Federal
State
Other
Other Accounts Receivable
Internal Balances
Inventory
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Assets, Net
Sites (Land)

HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Exhibit A-1

Depreciable Site Improvements, Buildings and

Building Improvements and Furniture,
Machinery and Equipment
Lease Assets, Net
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Outflows - Pensions

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

Accrued Interest Payable

Accounts Payable

Unearned Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows - Pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Maintenance Reserve
Excess Surplus
Unemployment Compensation
Student Activities
Unrestricted/(Deficit)
Total Net Position

JUNE 30, 2022
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 2,073,664 $ 49,338 $ 2,123,002
66,576 14,784 81,360
440,873 256 441,129
11,336 11,336
14,164 14,164

(24,428) 24,428
6,629 6,629
2,815,207 2,815,207
4,826,600 4,826,600
2,039,517 4,542 2,044,059
8,399 8,399
12,271,908 99,977 12,371,885
236,908 236,908
236,908 236,908
32,000 32,000
176,464 7,612 184,076
444,250 4,013 448,263
448,308 448,308
2,206,872 2,206,872
3,307,894 11,625 3,319,519
675,384 675,384
675,884 675,884
4,945,497 4,542 4,950,039
2,104,315 2,104,315
484,322 484,322
684,676 684,676
210,014 210,014
16,556 16,556
79,658 83,810 163,468
$ 8,525,038 $ 88,352 $ 8,613,390

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET

Exhibit B-1

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022
Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,798,248 $ 275,416 $ 2,073,664
Receivables From Other Governments:
Federal 66,576 66,576
State 440,873 440,873
Other 11,336 11,336
Other Accounts Receivable 14,164 14,164
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,798,651 16,556 2,815,207
Total Assets $ 5,051,936 $ 369,884 § 5,421,820
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 106,464 $ 106,464
Interfund Payable:
Food Service Fund 24,428 24,428
Unearned Revenue $ 444,250 444,250
Total Liabilities 130,892 444,250 575,142
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Capital Reserve Account 2,104,315 2,104,315
Maintenance Reserve Account 484,322 484,322
Excess Surplus - 2023-2024 684,676 684,676
Excess Surplus - 2022-2023 362,026 362,026
Unemployment Compensation 210,014 210,014
Student Activities 16,556 16,556
Assigned to:
Year End Encumbrances 506,198 506,198
Unassigned:
General Fund 569,493 569,493
Special Revenue Fund/(Deficit) (90,922) (90,922)
Total Fund Balances/(Deficit) 4,921,044 (74,366) 4,846,678
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 5,051,936 $ 369,884
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Net Position (A-1) is Different Because:
Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the Funds. The cost of the assets is $11,578,814 and the accumulated depreciation
is $4,712,697. 6,866,117
Leased Assets used in Governmental Activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the Funds. 8,399
Long-Term Liabilities, including Bonds Payable, Financed Purchases, and Leases Payable, are not
due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the Funds. (1,973,573)
Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized
as an expenditure when due. (32,000)
The Net Pension Liability for PERS is not Due and Payable in the Current Period and is not Reported
in the Governmental Funds. (681,607)
Certain Amounts Related to the Net Pension Liability are Deferred and Amortized in the Statement
of Activities and are not Reported in the Governmental Funds:
Deferred Outflows 166,908
Deferred Inflows (675,884)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 8,525,038

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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Exhibit B-2
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Special Debt Total
General Revenue Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUE:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy $ 6,699,003 $ 453,463 $ 7,152,466
Tuition Charges 29,500 29,500
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve Funds 1,029 1,029
Interest Earned on Maintenance Reserve Funds 273 273
Interest Earned 2,298 2,298
Restricted Miscellaneous Revenue 33,405 $ 31,374 64,779
Miscellaneous 22,461 2,000 24,461
Total - Local Sources 6,787,969 33,374 453,463 7,274,806
State Sources 3,452,079 627,316 78,287 4,157,682
Federal Sources 314,480 314,480
Total Revenue 10,240,048 975,170 531,750 11,746,968
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular Instruction 2,202,736 844,964 3,047,700
Special Education Instruction 999,430 93,306 1,092,736
Other Instruction 137,047 137,047
Support Services and Undistributed Costs:
Tuition 18,442 18,442
Student & Instruction Related Services 1,203,463 26,138 1,229,601
General Administrative Services 188,316 188,316
School Administrative Services 170,347 170,347
Central Services 113,922 113,922
Administrative Information Technology 26,699 26,699
Pupil Transportation 18,740 18,740
Plant Operations and Maintenance 727,634 727,634
Benefits - Allocated and Unallocated 3,135,137 3,135,137
Debt Service:
Principal 415,000 415,000
Interest and Other Charges 116,750 116,750
Capital Outlay 89,419 52,201 141,620
Total Expenditures 9,031,332 1,016,609 531,750 10,579,691
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue over/(under) Expenditures 1,208,716 (41,439) 1,167,277
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
Transfers (27,552) 27,552
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) (27,552) 27,552
Net Change in Fund Balances 1,181,164 (13,887) 1,167,277
Fund Balance/(Deficit)—July 1 3,739,880 (60,479) 3,679,401
Fund Balance/(Deficit)}—June 30 $ 4,921,044 $ (74,366) $ -0 - $ 4,846,678

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (from B-2)

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Activities (A-2) are Different Because:

Capital outlays realted to capital assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation differs from capital outlays in the period.
Depreciation expense $ (121,909)

Capital Asset Additions 141,620

Capital outlays related to lease assets are reported in Governmental Funds as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives or lease term as amortization expense. This is the amount by which amortization
differs from capital outlays in the period.
Amortization Expense

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, €.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the paid amount
exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities. (+)

Repayment of leases is an expenditure in the Governmental Funds, but the repayment reduces
Long-Term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Position and is not reported in the Statement of Activities.

In the Statement of Activities, interest on Long-Term Debt in the Statement of Activities is accrued,
regardless of when due. In the Governmental Funds, interest is reported when due. When accrued
interest exceeds the interest paid, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the
interest paid exceeds the accrued interest, the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

The net pension liability reported in the statement of activities does not require the use of
current financial resources and is not reported as an expenditure in the Governmental Funds:
Change in Net Pension Liability
Change in Deferred Outflows
Change in Deferred Inflows

Change in Net Position - Governmental Funds (Exhibit A-2)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

$

$

Exhibit B-3

1,167,277

19,711

(7,759)

37,452

415,000

7,908

6,917

250,133
(136,381)

136,140

1,896,398
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Exhibit B-4
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022
Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 49,338
Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable:
State 256
Federal 14,784
Interfund Receivable 24,428
Inventories 6,629
Total Current Assets 95,435
Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:
Equipment 176,844
Accumulated Depreciation (172,302)
Total Non-Current Assets 4,542
Total Assets 99,977
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable- Vendors 7,612
Unearned Revenue - Donated Commodities 2,320
Unearned Revenue - Prepaid Sales 1,693
Total Liabilities 11,625
NET POSITION:
Investment in Capital Assets 4,542
Unrestricted 83,810
Total Net Position $ 88,352

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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Exhibit B-5
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-Type

Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Operating revenue
Local Sources:

Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Sales $ 6,400
Total Operating Revenue 6,400
Operating Expenses:

Cost of Sales - Reimbursable Programs 76,851
Salaries, Benefits & Payroll Taxes 50,417
Supplies, Insurance & Other Costs 1,565
Management Fee 7,417
Depreciation 1,357
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,361
Total Operating Expenses 138,968
Operating (Loss) (132,568)
Non-Operating Revenue
Local Sources:
Interest Income 25
State Sources:
COVID 19 - Seamless Summer Option 3,286
Federal Sources:

COVID 19 - Seamless Summer Option 184,652

Other Nutrition Programs -

COVID 19 - Pandemic/Electronic Benefits Transfer Administrative Reimbursement 1,242

Food Distribution Program 9,130
Total Non-Operating Revenue 198,335
Change in Net Position 65,767
Net Position - Beginning of Year 22,585
Net Position - End of Year $ 88,352

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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Exhibit B-6
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-Type

Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Receipts from Customers $ 6,400

Payments to Food Service Vendor (127,715)
Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities (121,315)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:

State Sources 3,487

Federal Sources 153,646
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 157,133
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Interest Income 25
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 25
Cash Flows (Used for) Capital Financing Activities:

Acquisition of Capital Assets (5,028)
Net Cash (Used for) Capital Financing Activities (5,028)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 30,815
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 18,523
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 49,338
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities:

Operating Loss $ (132,568)

Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Loss to Cash (Used for) Operating Activities:

Depreciation 1,357
Food Distribution Program 9,130
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) in Inventory (3,868)
Increase in Accounts Payable 4,117
Increase in Unearned Revenue - Donated Commodities 1,252
(Decrease) in Unearned Revenue - Prepaid Sales (735)
Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities $ (145,743)

Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:
The Food Service Enterprise Fund received and utilized commodities from the Federal Food Distribution Program
valued at $10,372 and $9,130, respectively, the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Board of Education (the "Board") of the High Bridge School District (the
"District") have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied
to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
Board's accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity:

The Board is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution.
The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent
is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Codification Section 2100, "Defining the Financial
Reporting Entity" establishes standards to determine whether a governmental component unit should be included
in the financial reporting entity. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials
of the primary government are financially accountable. In addition, component units can be other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading. The primary government is financially
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and (1) it is able to impose its
will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. A legally separate, tax-exempt organization should
be reported as a component unit of a reporting entity if all of the following criteria are met: (1) The economic
resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the
primary government, its component units, or its constituents. (2) The primary government, or its component units,
is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the
separate organization. (3). The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific
primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant
to that primary government. There were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under
the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other
reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

B. Basis of Presentation:

District-Wide Financial Statements:

The statement of net position and the statement of activities present financial information about the District’s
governmental and business type activities. These statements include the financial activities of the overall District
in its entirety. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal transactions. These
statements distinguish between the governmental and business type activities of the District. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue and other nonexchange transactions.
Business type activities are financed in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for business-type
activities and for each function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with and are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expenses are allocated
to the functions using an appropriate allocation method or association with the specific function. Indirect
expenses include health benefits, employer’s share of payroll taxes, compensated absences and tuition
reimbursements. Program revenue includes (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the
programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular program. Revenue that is not classified as program revenue, including all taxes, is presented as
general revenue. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
government function or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
B. Basis of Presentation: (Cont’d)

Fund Financial Statements:

During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain School District functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The fund
financial statements provide information about the District’s funds. Separate statements for each fund category —
governmental and proprietary - are presented. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to
require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted
in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as major is important for
public interest and to promote consistency among district financial reporting models.

The District reports the following governmental funds:

General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account for
all expendable financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified
in the capital outlay subfund.

As required by NJDOE, the District includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. GAAP, as it pertains
to governmental entities, states that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays
for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from
unrestricted revenue. Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of
New Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the
acquisition of or additions to capital assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds,
construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment.
These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by Board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund: The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of
specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than
debt service and capital projects. Thus, the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue from State and Federal Governments (other than major capital projects, debt service or
the enterprise funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted or committed to expenditures for
specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report financial resources
that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets or lease assets (other than those financed by
proprietary funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are
specifically authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election
or at a special election, funds appropriated from the General Fund, and from aid provided by the state to
offset the cost of approved capital projects.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for principal and interest.

The District reports the following proprietary fund:

Enterprise (Food Service) Fund: The Enterprise Fund accounts for all revenue and expenses pertaining
to the Board’s cafeteria operations. The food service fund is utilized to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost
(i.e., expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on
a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The district-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash transaction takes
place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the District gives or receives value without directly receiving or
giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenue is recognized when measurable and
available. The District considers all revenue reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenue is
collected within sixty days after the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Capital asset or
lease asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term
debt and acquisitions under financed purchases are reported as other financing sources.

It is the District’s policy that when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available, to apply restricted resources first
followed by unrestricted resources. Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, it is the District’s policy to apply
committed resources first followed by assigned resources and then unassigned resources when an expenditure is
incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the District may fund certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenue. Therefore, when program expenses are
incurred, both restricted and unrestricted net position may be available to finance the program. It is the District’s
policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by general revenue.

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue, and debt
service funds. The budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was submitted to the County office and was
approved by a vote of the Board of Education. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item
accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of
accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board
resolution at any time during the fiscal year. All budget amendments/transfers must be made by School Board
resolution. All budgetary amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect the original
budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budget
during the year).
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
D. Budgets/Budgetary Control: (Cont’d)

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the
year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and
generally accepted accounting principles, with the exception of the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental
fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis except
for the student activities. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting
budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenue, whereas the
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP
basis financial reports.

The General Fund and Special Revenue Fund budgetary revenue differs from GAAP revenue due to a difference
in recognition of the last two state aid payments for the current year. Since the State is recording the last two
state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the District cannot recognize these payments on the GAAP
financial statements.

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund

Sources/Inflows of Resources:
Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Revenue"

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 10,243,687 $ 1,022,531
Differences - Budget to GAAP:

Grant Accounting Budgetary Basis Differs from GAAP in that the

Budgetary basis recognizes Encumbrances as Expenditures

and Revenue whereas the GAAP basis does not. (686)
Prior Year State Aid Payments Recognized for GAAP Statements,

not Recognized for Budgetary Purposes 137,204 71,799
Current Year State Aid Payments Recognized for Budgetary

Purposes, not Recognized for GAAP Statements (140,843) (90,922)
Total Revenues as Reported on the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds. $ 10,240,048 $ 1,002,722

Uses/Outflows of Resources:
Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Total Outflows" from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 9,031,332 $ 1,017,295

Differences - Budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but

not received are reported in the year the order is placed for

budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received

for financial reporting purposes. (686)

Total Expenditures as Reported on the Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 9,031,332 $ 1,016,609

Page 37



HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash and cash in banks. Certificates of deposit with maturities of one
year or less when purchased are stated at cost.

The District generally records investments at fair value and records the unrealized gains and losses as part of
investment income. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an investment in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The District categorizes its fair value measurements within
the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the type of investments and types of financial institutions they may
invest in. New Jersey Statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased by
New Jersey school districts. Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of
funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The statute
requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a depository unless such funds are secured in
accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national
banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge
collateral, having a market value of at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public
funds, to secure the deposits of Government Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it pledged, plus the
collateral of all the other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the
Governmental Units.

F. Interfund Transactions:

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the District-wide statements are reported in the
same manner as general revenues. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for
repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in
governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in the enterprise fund. Repayments from funds
responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the
financial statements.

On fund financial statements, short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables. These
amounts are eliminated in the statement of net position, except for amounts due between governmental and
business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances.

G. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts:

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered collectible.

H. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental
funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as restricted, committed and/or assigned fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed
contracts for goods and services.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

H. Encumbrances: (Cont’d)

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are reflected in the
balance sheet as unearned revenue at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the
beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding

encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

I. Short-term Interfund Receivables/Payables:

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or
services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

J. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses:

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund,
are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase.

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fund represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit
periods beyond June 30, 2022.

K. Capital Assets:

The District has established a formal system of accounting for its capital assets. Capital assets acquired or
constructed prior to the establishment of the formal system are valued at cost based on historical records or
through estimation procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. Land has been recorded at
estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are valued at acquisition value. The cost of normal maintenance
and repairs is not capitalized. The District does not possess any infrastructure. Capital assets have been reviewed
for impairment.

The capitalization threshold (the dollar value above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset
accounts) is $2,000. The depreciation method is straight-line. The estimated useful lives of capital assets reported
in the district-wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows:

Estimated Useful Life
Buildings and Building Improvements 50 years
Site Improvements 20 years
Furniture, Machinery, and Equipment 10 to 15 years
Computer and Related Technology 5 years
Vehicles 8 years

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital
outlay expenditures in the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets are not capitalized and related
depreciation is not reported in the fund financial statements.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

L. Lease Assets

Intangible right-to-use lease assets are assets which the District leases for a term of more than one year. The
value of leases are determined by the net present value of the leases at the District's incremental borrowing rate
at the time of the lease agreement, amortized over the term of the agreement.

M. Long Term Liabilities:

In the district-wide and enterprise fund statements of net position, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or enterprise funds.
Bond premium and discounts, are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt
using the straight-line method of amortization. In the fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

N. Accrued Salaries and Wages:

The District does not allow employees who provide services over the ten-month academic year the option to have
their salaries evenly distributed during the entire twelve-month year, therefore, there are no accrued salaries and
wages as of June 30, 2022.

O. Compensated Absences:

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by GASB. A
liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event
that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the District’s
personnel policy. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. Sick leave
benefits provide for accumulated sick days and begin vesting with the employee after fifteen years of service.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities, whose average maturities are greater than one year,
should be reported in two components — the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one
year.

P. Lease Payable

In the district-wide financial statements, leases payable are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
In the governmental fund financial statements, the present value of lease payments is reported as other financing
sources.

Q. Unearned Revenue:

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which has been received but not yet earned. See
Note 1(D) regarding the special revenue fund.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

R. Fund Balance Appropriated:

General Fund: Of the $4,921,044 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2022, $2,104,315 is restricted
in the capital reserve account; $484,322 is restricted in the maintenance reserve account; $684,676 is
restricted as current year excess surplus and will be appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, $362,026 is restricted as prior year excess surplus and has been
appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, $506,198 is
assigned for year-end encumbrances, $210,014 is restricted for unemployment compensation, and
$569,493 is unassigned which is $140,843 less than the Budgetary basis, due to the final state aid
payments, which are not recognized until the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

Special Revenue Fund: Of the $(74,366) Special Revenue Fund fund balance at June 30, 2022, $(90,922)
is unassigned due to the last two state aid payments, which are not recognized on a GAAP Basis, and
$16,556 is restricted for student activities.

Calculation of Excess Surplus: In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7 as amended by P.L. 2004, c.73
(S1701), the designation for Restricted Fund Balance-Excess Surplus is a required calculation. New
Jersey school districts are required to restrict General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30
if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent
year’s budget. The District had excess surplus as noted above.

The District’s unassigned fund balance in the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund is less on a GAAP basis
than the budgetary basis by $140,843 and $90,922 respectively as reported in the fund statements (modified
accrual basis). P.L. 2003, C.97 provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following
school budget year, districts must record the last state aid payment as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the
current school budget year. The bill provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the
current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition
(revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the
other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last state aid payments in the subsequent
fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize the last state aid payments on the GAAP financial statements until
the year the State records the payable. The excess surplus calculation is calculated using the fund balance reported
on the Budgetary Comparison Schedule, including the final state aid payments and not the fund balance reported
on the fund statement which excludes the last state aid payments.

S. Deficit in Net Position/Fund Balance:

The District has a deficit in unassigned fund balance of $90,922 and a total deficit of $74,366 in the Special
Revenue Fund due to the last two state aid payments for the Preschool Education Aid Program payments not
being received as of June 30, 2022,

T. Net Position:

Net position is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources.

A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net position by the District that is applicable to a future
reporting period. A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net position by the District that is applicable
to a future reporting period. The District had deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2022 related to pensions.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

T. Net Position (Cont’d)
The District had a deferred inflow of resources at June 30, 2022 related to pensions.
Net position is displayed in three components - net investment in capital assets; restricted and unrestricted.

The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, lease assets, net of accumulated amortization, reduced by the outstanding balances of borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets or related debt also would be included in this component of net position.

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources related to those assets.

The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital

assets or the restricted component of net position

U. Fund Balance Restrictions, Commitments and Assignments:

The restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. The committed fund balance
classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined for a formal action of
the District’s highest level of decision-making authority. Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are
intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as
restricted or committed. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the District’s General Fund
and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the unassigned
classifications should be used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes
for which amounts have been restricted, committed or assigned.

Fund balance restrictions have been established for excess surplus, a capital reserve, a maintenance reserve,
unemployment compensation, and student activities.

The District Board of Education has the responsibility to formally commit resources for specific purposes through
a motion or a resolution passed by a majority of the Members of the Board of Education at a public meeting of
that governing body. The Board of Education must also utilize a formal motion or a resolution passed by a
majority of the Members of the Board of Education at a public meeting of that governing body in order to remove
or change the commitment of resources. The District has no committed resources at June 30, 2022.

The assignment of resources is generally made by the District Board of Education through a motion or a resolution
passed by a majority of the Members of the Board of Education. These resources are intended to be used for a
specific purpose. The process is not as restrictive as the commitment of resources and the Board of Education
may allow an official of the District to assign resources through policies adopted by the Board of Education. The
District has assigned resources in the General Fund for encumbrances at June 30, 2022.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

V. Revenue - Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions:

Revenue, resulting from exchange transactions in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded
in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means the resources will
be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fiscal year end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value in
return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or
the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the School District must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the School District on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and
available at fiscal year end: property taxes, interest and tuition.

W. Operating Revenue and Expenses:

Operating revenue are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the Enterprise Fund.
For the School District, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred
to provide the service that is the primary activity of the Enterprise Fund.

X. Management Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Y. Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the State of
New Jersey Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and the State of New Jersey Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions to/deductions from the PERS's and TPAF’s net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the PERS and the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Pension Plan investments are reported at fair value.
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NOTE 2. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND
STATEMENTS AND DISTRICT-WIDE STATEMENTS

Due to the differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used on the government fund statements
and district-wide statements, certain financial transactions are treated differently. The basic financial statements
contain a full reconciliation of these items.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board classifies certificates of deposit which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less
than twelve months from the date of purchase, as investments.

GASB requires disclosure of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the District in its cash, cash equivalents
and investments, if those items are uninsured or unregistered. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of
a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned.

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its cash management plan, the District ensures that any deposit or
investment matures within the time period that approximates the prospective need for the funds, deposited or
invested, so that there is not a risk to the market value of such deposits or investments.

Credit Risk - The District limits its investments to those authorized in its cash management plan which are those
permitted under state statute as detailed in the section of this note on investments.

Custodial Credit Risk — The District’s policy with respect to custodial credit risk requires that the District ensures
that District funds are only deposited in financial institutions in which New Jersey school districts are permitted
to invest their funds.

Deposits:

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in New Jersey
which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance
Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School
districts are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed
depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of collected public
funds on deposit and

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to
100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank of

Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of the Federal
Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Cont’d)

Investments:
New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

(D Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America;

2) Government money market mutual funds;

3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with
an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of
purchase, provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index
or other external factor;

4 Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or
units within which the school district is located;

®)] Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of
purchase, issued by New Jersey school districts, municipalities, counties, and entities subject to
the “Local Authorities Fiscal Control Law”, P.L.. 1983, ¢.313 (C.40A:5A-1 et seq.). Other bonds
or obligations having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of purchase may be
approved by the Division of Investment in the Department of the Treasury for investment by
local units;

(6) Local government investment pools;

(7 Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section 1
of P.L. 1977, c.281 (C.52:18A-90.4) ; or

() Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

(a) the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of
this subsection a. or are bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more
than 397 days from the date of purchase, issued by New Jersey school districts,
municipalities, counties, and entities subject to the requirements of the “Local
Authorities Fiscal Control Law,” P.L. 1983, ¢.313 (C.40A:5A-1 et seq.).;

(b) the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
(c) the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

(d) the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in section
1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C.17:9-41); and

(e) a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security of collateral is
executed; or
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Cont’d)

Investments: (Cont'd)

) Deposit of funds in accordance with the following conditions:

(a) The funds are initially invested through a public depository as defined in section 1 of
P.L. 1970, c. 236 (C.17:9-41) designated by the school district;

(b) The designated public depository arranges for the deposit of the funds in deposit
accounts in one or more federally insured banks, savings banks or savings and loan
associations or credit unions for the account of the school district;

(©) 100 percent of the principal and accrued interest of each deposit is insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund;

(d) The designated public depository acts as custodian for the school district with respect to
these deposits; and

(e) On the same date that the school district’s funds are deposited pursuant to subparagraph

(b) of this paragraph, the designated public depository receives an amount of deposits
from customers of other financial institutions, wherever located, equal to the amounts of
funds initially invested by the school district through the designated public depository.

As of June 30, 2022, cash and cash equivalents of the District consisted of the following:

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Capital Maintenance
Cash and Cash Reserve Reserve Unemployment Student
Equivalents Account Account Compensation Activities Total
Checking & Savings
Accounts $ 2,123,002 $ 2,104,315 § 484,322 $ 210,014 $ 16,556 $ 4,938,209

$

2,123,002 § 2,104,315 $ 484,322 § 210,014 $ 16,556 $ 4,938,209

During the period ended June 30, 2022 the District did not hold any investments. The carrying amount of the
Board's cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2022, was $4,938,209 and the bank balance was $5,315,064.
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NOTE 4. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the High Bridge Board of Education by inclusion of $1 on October
9, 2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital
reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District’s approved Long Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the State Department of Education, a district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for
taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item
appropriation amounts, or both. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of
the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the
four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d)7, the balance
in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved
LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2021 $ 1,808,390
Increased by:

Interest Earnings 1,029

Board Resolution 1,000,000

2,809,419

Decreased by:

Budgeted Withdrawal (705,104)
Ending Balance, June 30, 2022 $ 2,104,315

The June 30, 2022 Capital Reserve balance does not exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects
in the District’s Long Range Facilities Plan (“LRFP”). The withdrawal from the capital reserve account was for
use in DOE approved facilities projects, consistent with the District’s LRFP.
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NOTE 5. MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT

A maintenance reserve account in the amount of $1 was established by the High Bridge Board of Education on
June 30, 2003. The funds for the establishment of this reserve were withdrawn from unassigned general fund
balance. These funds are restricted to be used for specific activities necessary for the purpose of keeping a school
facility open and safe for use or in its original condition, and for keeping its constituent buildings systems fully
and efficiently functional and for keeping their warranties valid but cannot be used for routine or capital
maintenance. The purpose of the reserve is to provide funds for anticipated expenditures required to maintain a
building.

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:26A-4.2 funds may be deposited into the maintenance reserve account at any time by
board resolution to meet the required maintenance of the district by transferring unassigned general fund balance
or by transferring excess, unassigned general fund balance that is anticipated to be deposited during the current
year in the advertised recapitulation of balances of the subsequent year’s budget that is certified for taxes. Funds
may be withdrawn from the maintenance reserve account and appropriated into the required maintenance account
lines at budget time or any time during the year by board resolution for use on required maintenance activities by
school facility as reported in the comprehensive maintenance plan. Funds withdrawn from the maintenance
reserve account are restricted to required maintenance appropriations and may not be transferred to any other line-
item account. In any year that maintenance reserve account funds are withdrawn, unexpended required
maintenance appropriations, up to the amount of maintenance reserve account funds withdrawn, shall be restored
to the maintenance reserve account at year-end. At no time, shall the maintenance reserve account have a balance
that exceeds four percent of the replacement cost of the current year of the district’s school facilities. If the account
exceeds this maximum amount at June 30, the excess shall be restricted and designated in the subsequent year’s
budget. The maintenance reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the
general fund annual budget.

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2021 $ 434,049
Increased by:
Interest Earnings 273
Board Resolution 50,000
Ending Balance, June 30, 2022 $ 484,322

NOTE 6. TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL OUTLAY

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the District transferred $23,833 to Capital Outlay.
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Beginning
Balance Adjustments/ Ending
as Restated Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets not Being Depreciated:
Sites (Land) $ 4,826,600 $ 4,826,600
Total Capital Assets
Not Being Depreciated 4,826,600 4,826,600
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Site Improvements 445,416 445,416
Buildings and Building Improvements 4,335,375 $ 50,536 4,385,911
Machinery and Equipment 1,829,803 91,084 1,920,887
Total Capital Assets
Being Depreciated 6,610,594 141,620 6,752,214
Governmental Activities Capital Assets 11,437,194 141,620 11,578,814
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Site Improvements (346,824) (7,243) (354,067)
Buildings and Building Improvements (2,538,364) (93,937) (2,632,301)
Machinery and Equipment (1,705,600) (20,729) (1,726,329)
(4,590,788) (121,909) (4,712,697)
Governmental Activities Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 6,846,406 $ 19,711 $ -0 - $ 6,866,117
Business Type Activities:
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Furniture and Equipment $ 171,816 $ 5,028 $ 176,844
Less Accumulated Depreciation (170,945) (1,357) (172,302)
Business Type Activities Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 871 $ 3,671 $ -0 - $ 4,542
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:
Regular Instruction $ 2,499
Special Education Instruction 2,280
Other Special Instruction 1,524
Other Instruction 1,341
Student and Instruction Related Services 1,682
School Administrative Services 1,548
General Administrative Services 6,425
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 104,610
$121,909
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NOTE 8. LEASE ASSETS

Lease asset balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows:

(Restated)
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Lease Assets Being Amortized:
Machinery and Equipment $ 31,034 31,034
Total Lease Assets Being Amortized 31,034 31,034
Governmental Activities Lease Assets 31,034 31,034
Less Accumulated Amortization for:
Machinery and Equipment (14,876) $ (7,759) (22,635)
(14,876) (7,759) (22,635)
Governmental Activities Lease Assets,
Net of Accumulated Amortization $ 16,158 $ (7,759) $ 8,399
Amortization expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:
Regular Instruction $ 7,759
$ 7,759

NOTE 9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the district-

wide financial statements:

(Restated)
Balance Balance
6/30/2021 Accrued Retired 6/30/2022
Bonds Payable $ 2,335,000 $ 415,000 $ 1,920,000
Compensated Absences
Payable 82,006 $ 297 37,749 44,554
Leases Payable 16,927 7,908 9,019
Net Pension Liaibility 931,740 250,133 681,607
$ 3,348,746 $ 297 $ 702,882 $ 2,655,180

A. Bonds Payable:

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through referendums. All
bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are

general obligation bonds.
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

A. Bonds Payable: (Cont’d)

The District had bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2022 as follows:

Serial Bonds - 1999 Refunding Bonds

Final
Maturity
Date

2/15/2026

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ending
June 30,

2023
2024
2025
2026

The bonds will be liquidated by the Debt Service Fund.

B. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued:

As of June 30, 2022, the Board had no bonds authorized but not issued.

C. Compensated Absences Payable:

Interest
Rate Amount
4.875 -4.90% $ 1,920,000
Bonds
Principal Interest Total
$ 440,000 $ 96,000 $ 536,000
465,000 75,520 540,520
495,000 50,120 545,120
520,000 25,110 545,110
$ 1,920,000 $ 246,750 $ 2,166,750

The liability for compensated absences of the governmental fund types is recorded as a long-term liability. There
is no current portion of the compensated absences balance of the governmental funds and business type activities
in the current year. The long-term liability balance of compensated absences is $44,554 for Governmental
Activities and $ - 0 - for Business-type Activities.

Compensated absences will be liquidated by the General Fund.

D. Net Pension Liability:

The Public Employees’ Retirement System’s (PERS) net pension liability of the governmental fund types is
recorded in the current and long-term liabilities and will be liquidated by the General Fund. The current portion
of the net pension liability at June 30, 2022 is $-0- and the long-term portion is $681,607. See Note 10 for further

information on the PERS.

E. Financed Purchases Payable:

As of June 30, 2022, the Board had no finances purchases payable.
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

F. Leases Payable:

The District had leases outstanding as of June 30, 2022 as follows:

Leases Payable

Frequency Final Maturity Interest
Purpose of Payment Date Rate Amount
Savin Copiers Monthly 07/01/23 5.250% $ 9,019

Principal and interest due on leases outstanding will be liquidated through the General Fund and is as follows:

Fiscal Year Governmental Activities
Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2023 $ 8,308 $ 260
2024 711 3
$ 9,019 $ 263

NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS

Substantially all of the Board’s employees participate in one of the two contributory, defined benefit public
employee retirement systems: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employee’s
Retirement System (PERS) of New Jersey; or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) a tax-
qualified defined contribution money purchase pension plan under Internal Revenue Code (IRC)401(a).

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the
Division). For additional information about the PERS, please refer to the Division’s annual financial statements
which can be found at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml.

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death and disability
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service. The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28. 2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011
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NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Benefits Provided (Cont’d)

Service retirement benefits of 1/55% of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tiers 1
and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits
of 1/60™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4 members upon reaching age
62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to Tiers 1 and 2 members
before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 with 25 or more years of service credit before age 62 and Tier 5 with 30
or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that
a members retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with
their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 50 to age 60 if they have at least
25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and
have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.

Contributions

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by active members and
contributing members. The local employers’ contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate
which includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an option for
local employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution amounts certified for
payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be credited with the full payment and any such
amounts will not be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of
those retirement systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability contributions provided under
this law. This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments over a period of 15 years,
beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return
on the actuarial value of assets. District contributions to PERS amounted to $67,382 for 2022.

The employee contribution rate was 7.50% effective July 1, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2022, the District reported a liability of $681,607 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020 which was rolled forward to June
30, 2021. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating members,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the District's proportion was 0.00575%, which was an increase of
0.00004% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

Page 53



HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)
A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized an actual pension benefit of $182,510. At June
30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Amortization Deferred Deferred
Year of Period Outflows of Inflows of
Deferral in Years Resources Resources
Changes in Assumptions 2017 5.48 $ 28,805
2018 5.63 54,003
2019 5.21 47,640
2020 5.16 112,208
2021 5.13 $ 3,550
3,550 242,656
Changes in Proportion 2017 5.48 16,242
2018 5.63 13,165
2019 5.21 248,795
2020 5.16 116,169
2021 5.13 7,032
152,608 248,795
Difference Between Expected and Actual 2017 5.48 857
Experience 2018 5.63 2,055
2019 5.21 3,642
2020 5.16 6,251
2021 5.13 2,825
10,750 4,880
Net Difference Between Projected 2018 5.00 5,325
and Actual Investment Earnings 2019 5.00 (1,718)
on Pension Plan Investments 2020 5.00 (38,718)
2021 5.00 214,664
179,553
Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date 2021 1.00 70,000

$ 236,908 $§ 675,884
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A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding employer
specific amounts including changes in proportion and the District contribution subsequent to the measurement
date) related to pensions will be recognized in the pension benefit as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Total
2022 $ (160,829)
2023 (114,832)
2024 (78,296)
2025 (58,855)
2026 23

$ (412,789)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
July 1, 2020 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions:

Inflation Rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00 — 6.00% based on years of service
Thereafter 3.00 — 7.00% based on years of service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee Mortality
Table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement
from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and a 99.7%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future

improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-
2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018.
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A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2021) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the Board of Trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected_returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed
for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS’ target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Expected Real

Target Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 8.09%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.71%
Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 10.96%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.30%
Real Assets 3.00% 7.40%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.15%
High Yield 2.00% 3.75%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.60%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.68%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 0.95%
Risk Management Strategies 3.00% 3.35%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2021. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the nonemployer contributing entity
will be based upon 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of
actuarially determined contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all projected benefit payments
in determining the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as of June 30, 2021
calculated using the discount rate as disclosed below, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2021

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
District's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability $ 928,211 $ 681,607 $ 472,329

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PERS
financial statements.

B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey, Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation, by which the State of New Jersey (the State) is
responsible to fund 100% of the employer contributions, excluding any local employer early retirement incentive
(ERI) contributions. The TPAF is administered by the State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits
(the Division). For additional information about the TPAF, please refer to the Division’s annual financial
statements which can be found at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml.

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death and disability
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions
and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In
the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members’
accounts. The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF:

Tier Definition
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28. 2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011
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Benefits Provided (Cont’d)

Service retirement benefits of 1/55™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tiers 1
and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits
of 1/60™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4 members upon reaching age
62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to Tiers 1 and 2 members
before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and Tier 5 before
age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month
that a members retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to
members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the
respective tier.

Contributions

The contribution policy for TPAF is set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66 and requires contributions by active members and
contributing members. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State. The State’s
pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which included the employer portion of the
normal cost and an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. For fiscal year 2021, the State’s pension
contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount.

Special Funding Situation

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are considered to be in a
special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer
contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan (except for
employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in
the financial statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of
the local participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing entities’ total
proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer. In addition,
each local participating employer must recognize pension expense associated with the employer as well as
revenue in an amount equal to the nonemployer contributing entities’ total proportionate share of the collective
pension expense associated with the local participating employer. During the fiscal year ended 2022, the State of
New Jersey contributed $332,788 to the TPAF for normal pension benefits on behalf of the District, which is
greater than the contractually required contribution of $392,788.

The employee contribution rate was 7.50% effective July 1, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2022, the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District was
$16,692,768. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020 which was rolled
forward to June 30, 2021. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the District's proportion was 0.0347%, which
was a decrease of 0.004% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ -0-
State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Associated

with the District 16,692,768
Total $§ 16,692,768

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the State recognized pension expense on behalf of the District in the
amount of $392,788 and the District recognized pension expense and revenue for that same amount in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022 financial statements.

The State reported collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding
employer specific amounts) related to pensions from the following sources:

Amortization Deferred Deferred
Year of Period Outflows of Inflows of
Deferral in Years Resources Resources

Changes in Assumptions 2014 8.50 $ 1,464,605
2015 8.30 $ 57,204,429

2016 8.30 37,311,034
2017 8.30 93,981,436
2018 8.29 618,845,893

2019 8.04 97,553,990

2020 7.99 6,444,940
2021 7.93 171,234,070

941,265,828 142,774,569
Difference Between Expected 2014 8.50 153,774,925
and Actual Experience 2015 8.30 926,219,611
2016 8.30 3,000,278,784

2017 8.30 5,282,196,290

2018 8.29 3,527,661,165

2019 8.04 2,510,940,613
2020 7.99 1,209,286,241

2021 7.93 12,903,483,645

5,289,559,561 24,224,281,713

Net Difference Between Projected 2018 5.00 96,030,373

and Actual Investment Earnings on 2019 5.00 (72,441,385)
Pension Plan Investments 2020 5.00 (724,186,621)
2021 5.00 3,554,633,811

2,854,036,178
$ 6,230,825,389 $ 27,221,092,460
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B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

Amounts reported by the State as collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense excluding that attributable to employer-paid members
contributions as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Total
2022 $ (2,914,282,899)
2023 (3,500,098,875)
2024 (4,665,036,366)
2025 (4,192,375,542)
2026 (2,350,648,872)
Thereafter (3,367,824,517)

$ (20,990,267,071)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
July 1, 2020 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55 — 4.45% based on years of service
Thereafter 2.75 - 5.65% based on years of service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee mortality
table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from
the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 114.7% adjustment for males and a 99.6%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3%
adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of
2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018.
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B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d)

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2021) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the Board of Trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected_returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed
for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF’s target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Expected Real

Target Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 8.09%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.71%
Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 10.96%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.30%
Real Assets 3.00% 7.40%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.15%
High Yield 2.00% 3.75%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.60%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.68%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 0.95%
Risk Management Strategies 3.00% 3.35%

Discount Rate — TPAF

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2021. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on 100% of the
actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to projected benefit
payments in determining the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Associated with the District to
Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District as
of June 30, 2021 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the State’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point
higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2021

At 1% At Current At 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
State's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability Associated with the
District $ 19,750,332 $ 16,692,768 $ 14,124,605

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the TPAF's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued TPAF financial
statements.

C. Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

Prudential Financial jointly administers the DCRP investments with the NJ Division of Pensions and Benefits. If
an employee is ineligible to enroll in the PERS or TPAF, the employee may be eligible to enroll in the DCRP.
DCRP provides eligible members with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life
insurance and disability coverage. Vesting is immediate upon enrollment for members of the DCRP.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available
financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the DCRP. The
financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of
Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625-0295.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Employee contributions are based on
percentages of 5.50% for DCRP of employees’ annual compensation, as defined. The DCRP was established
July 1, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 and expanded under the
provisions of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008. Employee contributions for DCRP are matched by a 3% employer
contribution.

For DCRP, the District recognized pension expense of $9,625 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Employee
contributions to DCRP amounted to $17,543 for the year ended June 30, 2022.

NOTE 11. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Health Benefits are provided to the employees
through the State of New Jersey Health Benefits Plan.
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Property, Liability and Health Benefits

The District is a member of the School Alliance Insurance Fund (the “Fund”). This public entity risk management
pool provides general liability, property and automobile coverage and workers’ compensation for its members.
A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this annual comprehensive
financial report.

The Fund is a risk-sharing public entity risk pool that is an insured and self-administered group of school boards
established for the purpose of providing low-cost insurance for its respective members in order to keep local
property taxes to a minimum. Each member appoints an official to represent their respective entity for the purpose
of creating a governing body from which officers for the Fund are elected.

As a member of this Fund, the District could be subject to supplemental assessments in the event of deficiencies.
If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, members would become responsible for their respective shares of
the Fund’s liabilities. The Fund can declare and distribute dividends to members upon approval of the State of
New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance. These distributions are divided among the members in the
same ratio as their individual assessment related to the total assessment of the membership body.

The June 30, 2022 audit report for the Fund is not available as of the date of this report. Selected, summarized
financial information for the Fund as of June 30, 2021 is as follows:

Total Assets $ 52,863,732
Net Position $ 20,991,515
Total Revenue $ 42,696,854
Total Expenses $ 42,245,248
Change in Net Position $ 451,606
Members Dividends $ -0-

Financial statements for the Fund are available at the Fund’s Executive Director’s Office:

Public Entity Group Administrative Services
6000 Midlantic Drive, Suite 300

Mt. Laurel, NJ 08054

(609) 386-6060

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit
Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment
Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is
billed quarterly for amounts due to the State.
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New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance (Cont’d)

The following is a summary of the District’s contributions, employee contributions, interest earnings,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s Unemployment
Compensation Restricted Fund Balance in the General Fund for the current and previous two years:

Employee
Employer Contributions Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions and Interest Reimbursed Balance
2021-2022 $ 25,000 $ 8,527 $ 123 $ 210,014
2020-2021 52,824 7,669 347 176,610
2019-2020 50,000 7,806 68 116,464

NOTE 12. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The Board of Education receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state governments. A
significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Board of Education's
programs and activities.

NOTE 13. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

There were interfund balances at June 30, 2022 as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 24,428
Enterprise Fund $ 24,428
$ 24,428 $ 24428

The interfund due from the General Fund to the Enterprise Fund as of June 30, 2022 represents the amount of
receipts for the Federal and State Lunch Program received in the General Fund which were not turned over to the
Enterprise Fund prior to June 30, 2022.

NOTE 14. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of the following deferred compensation plans created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permit
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not available
to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as
follows:

AXA Equitable Life Insurance Company Security Benefit Group
Lincoln National Life Insurance Company Siracusa Benefits Program
Lincoln Investment Planning, LLC
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NOTE 15. TAX CALENDAR

Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed as of the previous calendar year. The tax
levy is divided into two billings. The first billing is an estimate of the current year's levy based on the prior year's
taxes. The second billing reflects adjustments to the current year's actual levy. The final tax bill is usually mailed
on or before June 14th, along with the first half estimated tax bills for the subsequent year. The first half estimated
taxes are divided into two due dates, February 1 and May 1. The final tax bills are also divided into two due
dates, August 1 and November 1. A ten- day grace period is usually granted before the taxes are considered
delinquent and there is an imposition of interest charges. A penalty may be assessed for any unpaid taxes in
excess of $10,000 at December 31 of the current year. Unpaid taxes of the current and prior year may be placed
in lien at a tax sale held after December 10.

Taxes are collected by the constituent municipality and are remitted to the local school district on a predetermined,
agreed-upon schedule.

NOTE 16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Grant Programs

The school district participates in state and federally assisted grant programs. The programs are subject to
program compliance audits by grantors or their representatives. The school district is potentially liable for
expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware of
any material items of noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures.

Litigation

The District is periodically involved in pending lawsuits. The District estimates that the potential claims against
it resulting from such litigation and not covered by insurance would not materially affect the financial statements
of the District.

Encumbrances

At June 30, 2022, the District had the following encumbrances payable:

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds

$ 506,198 § 116,895 $ 623,093

On the District’s Governmental Funds Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2022, $-0- is assigned for year-end
encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund, which is $116,895 less than the actual year-end encumbrances on a
budgetary basis. Encumbrances are not recognized on a GAAP basis and are reflected as either a reduction in
grants receivables or an increase in unearned revenue.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

Accounts Payable

At June 30, 2022, the District had the following accounts payable:

Governmental District
Funds Contribution Business-Type
Subsequent to the Total Activities
General Measurement Governmental Proprietary
Fund Date Activities Funds
Vendors $ 12,052 $ 12,052 $ 7,612
Due to State of New Jersey $ 70,000 70,000
Payroll Deductions
and Withholdings 94,412 94,412
$ 106464 3 70,000 $ 176,464  $ 7,612

NOTE 17. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local Education Retired (including Prescription Drug Program Fund)

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The District is in a “special funding situation”, as described in GASB Codification Section P50, in that OPEB
contributions and expenses are legally required to be made by and are the sole responsibility of the State of New
Jersey, not the District.

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay other post-employment
(health) benefits for the State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Education Plan. The State Health Benefit
Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan that is administered
on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in
GASB Codification Section P50. The State Health Benefits Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides
medical, prescription drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents of local
education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to be funded by
the State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f. According to N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f, the State
provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire from a board of education or county college with 25
years or more of service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following plans: the
Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), the Police and
Firemen Retirement System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011,
future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on
June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided
they retire with 25 years or more of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree
will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree’s annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 17. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Cont’d)

Plan Description and Benefits Provided (Cont’d)

The total nonemployer OPEB liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit obligations that are
provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these benefits is the responsibility of the individual
education employers.

For additional information about the State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Education Plan, please refer
to the Division’s annual financial statements which can be found at
https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/gasb-notices-opeb.shtml.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2019, the plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefit Payments 149,304
Active Plan Members 216,804
Total 366,108

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in.
This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate 2.50%
TPAF/ABP PERS
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55-4.45% 2.00 - 6.00%
based on service based on service
years years
Thereafter 1.55-4.45% 3.00 - 7.00%
based on service based on service
years years
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 17. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Cont’d)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs (Cont’d)

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience
studies for the periods July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2019 for TPAF and PERS,
respectively.

100% of all retirees who currently have healthcare coverage are assumed to continue with that coverage. 100%
of active members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement, having a coverage blend of 85% and
15% in PPO and HMO, respectively.

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) and “General”
(PERS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement
projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-
2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement
projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
“General” classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4.5% long term trend rate
after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate for fiscal
year 2021 through 2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend rate is 4.5% for all future years. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.0% and decreases to a 4.5% long term rate after seven years.
For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 was 2.21%. This represents the municipal bond rate as chosen by the State
of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal bond
Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.
As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the
discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 17. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Cont’d)

Changes in the State’s Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability Associated with the District

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 14,651,561
Changes for Year:
Service Cost 530,522
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 524,376
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experiences 4,221,188
Changes of Assumptions 4,363,495
Gross Benefit Payments by the State (415,868)
Contributions from Members 12,605
Net Changes 9,236,318
Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 23,887,879

Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability Attributable to the District to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB Liability attributable to the District as of June 30, 2020,
calculated using the discount rate as disclosed in this note, as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB liability
attributable to the District would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or
1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2020

At 1% At At 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(1.21%) (2.21%) (3.21%)
Total OPEB Liability Attributable to
the District $ 28,798,071 $ 23,887,879 $ 20,048,582

Page 69



HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Continued)

NOTE 17. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Cont’d)

Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability Attributable to the District to Changes in the Healthcare
Trend Rate

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB Liability attributable to the District as of June 30, 2020,
calculated using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed in this note, as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB
liability attributable to the District would be if it were calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2020

1% Healthcare 1%
Decrease Cost Trend Rate Increase
Total OPEB Liability Attributable to
the District $ 19,283,101 $ 23,887,879 $ 29,371,146

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 the District recognized OPEB expense of $886,534 as determined by the
State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. This expense and the related offsetting revenue are for
benefits provided by the State through a defined benefit OPEB plan that meets the criteria in GASB Codification
Section P50, in which there is a special funding situation.

In accordance with GASB Codification Section P50, as the District’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability is
$-0-, there is no recognition of the allocation of the proportionate share of the deferred inflows and outflows of
resources. At June 30, 2020 the State had deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB associated with the District from the following sources:

Original
Amortization Deferred Deferred
Year of Period Outflows of Inflows of
Deferral in Years Resources Resources
Changes in Assumptions 2017 9.54 $ 1,449,717
Changes in Assumptions 2018 9.51 1,276,025
2019 9.29 $ 171,995
2020 9.24 3,891,255
4,063,250 2,725,742
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience 2018 9.51 1,206,241
2019 9.29 2,024,386
2020 9.24 3,626,802
3,626,802 3,230,627
Changes in Proportion N/A N/A $ 63,116

$ 7,753,168 $ 5,956,369
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NOTE 17. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Cont’d)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
(Cont’d)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Total
2021 $ (15,303)
2022 (15,303)
2023 (15,303)
2024 (15,303)
2025 (15,303)
Thereafter (1,657,168)

$ (1,733,683)

NOTE 18. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The District made a prior year adjustment in the district-wide financial statements to record an intangible right-
to-use asset and a lease liability as of June 30, 2021 as a result of implementing GASB 87, Leases:

June 30, 2021 Balance
as Previously Retroactive June 30, 2021
Reported Adjustments as Restated
Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities:
Assets:

Lease Asset, Net $ -0- $ 16,158 $ 16,158
Total Asset 10,763,272 16,158 10,779,430
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Due Within One Year 415,000 7,908 422,908

Due Beyond One Year 2,933,746 9,019 2,942,765
Total Liabilities 3,668,214 16,927 3,685,141
Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,511,406 (769) 4,510,637
Total Net Position 6,656,323 (769) 6,655,554
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE STATE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY

ASSOCIATED WITH THE DISTRICT AND RELATED RATIOS

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost
Interest Cost
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes in Assumptions
Member Contributions
Gross Benefit Payments

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning
Total OPEB Liability - Ending
District's Covered Employee Payroll *

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll

LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Years Ending
2017 2018 2019 2020

$ 764,073 $ 634,908 $ 580,675 530,522
643,971 745,415 685,550 524,376
(2,000,211) (3,746,634) 4,221,188

(2,601,464) (1,990,993) 218,456 4,363,495

17,406 16,034 (449,759) 12,605
(472,709) (463,931) 13,332 (415,868)
(1,648,723) (3,058,778) (2,698,380) 9,236,318
22,057,442 20,408,719 17,349,941 14,651,561

$ 20,408,719 $ 17,349,941 $ 14,651,561 23,887,879
$ 4,180,218 $ 4,112,349 $ 4,131,458 4,143,924
20.48% 23.70% 28.20% 17.35%

* - Covered payroll for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020, 2019, 2018, and 2017 are based on the payroll on the June 30, 2019, 2018, 2017 and 2016 census data.

Note: This schedule does not contain ten years of information as GASB No. 75 was implemented during the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2018.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions

In the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation the mortality improvement was based on Scale MP-2020 while in the July
1, 2020 actuarial valuation the mortality improvement was based on Scale MP-2021.

B. TEACHERS’ PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 5.40% as of June 30, 2020 to 7.00% as of June 30, 2021.

In the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation the mortality improvement was based on Scale MP-2020 while in the July
1, 2020 actuarial valuation the mortality improvement was based on Scale MP-2021.

C. State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees OPEB Plan

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 was 2.21%. The discount rate for June 30, 2019 was 3.50%, a change of -
1.29%.

The mortality rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2020 were based on the following:

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) and “General”
(PERS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement
projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-
2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement
projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
“General” classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2020.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

C. State Health Benefit .ocal Education Retired Employees OPEB Plan (Cont’d)

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions (Cont’d)
The mortality rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2019 were based on the following:

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP), “General” (PERS),
and “Safety” (PFRS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019. Post-retirement mortality rates were based
on the Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-
2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2019.

The health care trend rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2020 were based on the following:

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4.5% long term trend rate
after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate for fiscal
year 2021 through 2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend rate is 4.5% for all future years. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.0% and decreases to a 4.5% long term rate after seven years.
For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.

The health care trend rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2019 were based on the following:

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.7% and decreases to a 4.5% long term trend rate
after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate for fiscal
year 2020 is reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend rate is 4.5% for all future years. For prescription drug
benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.5% and decreases to a 4.5% long term rate after eight years. For the Medicare
Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.

Page 79



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

Page 80



6b7°$60°C L89°EYT 01 8E€T'8YI'Y 8€T YIS
€8T LY0T 8IL'SSH'E SEY 801 SEY 801
0S9°C8T 0S9°C8T
1437 437
v0T'61 v0T'61
LTETTE LTETTE
T€E°600°1 T€€°600°1
061°¢ 061°¢
Y€ P YEPE Y8EPE
789°0S0°1 789°0S0°1 789°0S0°1
10¥°SLT 10¥°SLT 10¥°SLT
8YI°01H 8Y1°0IY
8EE Y1 8EE Y1 8eE Y1
0€9°¢€ 0€9°¢€ 0€9°¢€
991°8Y 696°L8L°9 €08°6£L°9 €08°6£L°9
Sov'ee Sov'ee
629 620°1 00% 00¥
(Lzn) €LT 00t 00t
867°C 867°C
19%°CC 19%°C¢
(000°9) 000°S 000°S
(005°S) $  00S6C 000°S¢€ 000°S¢€
€00°669°9 €00°669°9  $ €00°669°9  $
_.m5uo< 0} ﬂm‘ao«% wowvsm _mﬂ_ L mu@%mcmur—i wowﬁsm _.mﬁ_wCO
?E A Do:mﬁm A uowwﬁm

11301
1-D NqIyxg

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04

ANNA TVIINID

HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd

LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

HANHAHY TVIOL

$90INO0G 911G WO SANUAY [BI0],

suonnqIIuo)) AJLINdAS [e100S VL PoSINquIay
(po1e3png-uopN) doueinsuy LA1iqesiq o 1 -3u0 AVd.L
(pa3e3png-uoN) 9oueinsu] £101nqLuo0)-uoN AVd.L
(po1e3png-uoN) suonnqryuo)) uoisudd Jvd.L
(pa3e3png-uoN) suonnqriuo)) JuswaINay 1s0d AvVd.L
pry uoneyodsuel], o1jqng-uoN

PV A11IN23S [eoLI039)8)

pry uonezijenbg

pry uoneonpy [e1oadg [eo110391e)

pIV Areurpioenxyg

pry uoneuodsuel] [eo1103918)

PIV 92101) [00Td§

:S90IN0G 9JB}S WOIJ SONUOAIY

SO0INOG [800T WIOLJ SINUSAY [BI0],

SONUOAY SNOSUB[[IISIIA PAIJLNSAY Y10
spun,j 9AIsYY [eide) uo pourey 3SAIU]
JAJOSIY SOUBUDIUIRIA UO PIUIRH SAIIU]
pouIey 1S9193U]

SONUIAY SNOSUB[[IISIA PAIJLNSAIUN)
saneAoy pue sjuoy

9Je)S O UMM SVH'T IoqI0 Wwolf uonimy,
AAST xB], T8O0]

:S90INOG [BO0T WOIJ SONUSADY

Page 81



€Ky S96°18€ 86€°98¢ 00S°€ 868°T8E
3 S6€°1 Sl € 00t°1
€L6T 08$ €65°¢ (Ly9'1) 00T‘S
SH°1 066°6L€ T 18¢ aANS 86T°9LE
$86°8T SOVLI9 0S0°9t9 (2L D) TTS°8h9
9T 9€0°1 00€°1 00€°1
12€°8¢C 62919 0SLvH9 (TLv') TTTLYY
786061 9€L70T°T 81L°€6€T CIP°LOT S0€98C°C
000°S1 0£6°C€1 0€6°LY1 0£6°L6 000°0S
815°68 £09°6S 12161 (6LT°1) 00t°9p 1
6866 S8I°16 YLIT01 YLIY 000°001
¥68°6C YL ITI 89/.°161 89L°1S1
708 708 (861) 000°1
869°C1 869°C1 869°6 000°€

€L0°6€ 9r1°109 617019 612°0v9
96L°8 ¥T1°800°1 026°910°1 026°910°1
0161 $  9LISLI 980°LLI § 88 866°9L1 $

_.m5uo< 0} ﬂm‘ao«% wowvsm _mﬂ_ L mu@%mcmur—i wowﬁsm _.mﬁ_wCO
?E A Do:mﬁm A uowwﬁm

11jozg
1-D NqIyxg

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04

ANNA TVIINID

HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd

LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

wsnny (10,
sa1pddng [erouan
UoTONISU] J0J SOLIB[ES IoYI0
SIOUOBA T, JO SALIE[eS

wsnny

I0JUD)) 9OINOSAY/WO0Y I0IN0SY [BI0 ],
sa1jddng [erouan
SIOUOBA T, JO SALIe[eS
:I0JUQ)) Q0INOSIY/W00Y 9OINOSAY
:uonoNNsyJ - uoneonpy [er0ads

NOILDMNYLSNI - SWVIDOUd ¥V INDIT TVLOL
SYOOqQIXa ],
sarddng [e1ouon
SOOTAIOS [BOTUYOd ], PISeYdIng
SOOTAISS [BUOIIBONPH-[BUOISSIJOIJ PASLYOINJ
:uonoONNSU] pAINqLYSIPU() - SWeIsold Je[n3ay
SOOTAISS [BUOTIBONPH-[BUOISSIJOIJ PASLYOINJ
SIOUOBI ], JO SoLIe[eS
:uonoNNsu] SWOH - swei3old Ien3ay
SIOUOBI I, JO SALIR[RS - §-9 SOpRID)
SIOUOBI ], JO SALIR[RS - G-] SOprID
SIOUOBI I, JO SOLIR[eS - Ud)IeSIopury
:uononnsuy - sweidold Ien3ay
HSNAJXH INFIIND TVIINID

Page 82



688 11191 000°L1 000°L1
196 6€P°€ 000t 000y
8T¢ LT 000°€1 000°€T
¥8L°8 996°9C 0SL°S¢ 0SLS¢E
0S NS% 00S 00S
0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢
SLOT ST6C 000t 000y
STEE SLIY 00S°L 00S‘L
780t 91t°61 00S°€T 00S°€T
65T 65T 6 0S¢
65T 65T 6 0S¢
1£4°26 1£4°26 S9¢ 990°C6
011 011 (061) 00€
12€°26 12€°26 99 99.°16
LEEYE 0+ 666 LILEEOT LY€ 0TH €E0°1
61€°1 61€°1 (189) 000°C
61¢€°1 $ 61€°1 $ (189 000°C $
_.m5uo< 0} ﬂm‘ao«% wowvsm _mﬂ_ L mu@%mcmur—i wowﬁsm _.mﬁ_wCO
?E A Do:mﬁm A uowwﬁm

11jo¢g
1-D NqIyxg

uonINNSUJ - SONJ[YIY parosuodS-[00yos [e10],
(Sa119S ()0S-00€) SIOIAIIS paseydIng
SoLIe[RS

muonoNySu] - SONI[YIY palosuodg-[ooyog

uonoONNSUJ - SANIANIY JR[NOLLINOBIIXH 29 JB[NOLLINO0)) paiosuodg [00yoS [e10],
(spunyq Aouagdy) 11o1o(q 19A0)) 0} SIQJSUBL],
$100[qQ 1010
s[erateIA pue sarddng
(SA119S ()0S-00€) SOOIAIIS paseydIng
SoLIB[eS
:UOTIONISU] - SANIANDY JR[NOLLINOBIIXH 29 JB[NOLLINO0)) parosuodg [00yog

uononysyuy - uoneonpy rensurrg [e10L
sa1jddng [erouan
:uononnsu] - uoneonpy rendurfig

UOTJONISU] - [RIPIUWY/S[[IS dIseq [8I0L
sa1pddng [erouan
SIOUOBA T, JO SALIe[eS

:UOT)ONIISU] - [RIPOWY/S[IS dIseq

NOILDNYLSNI - NOILVONdd TVIOddS TVLOL
UOT}ONI)SUT OWOH T8I0,
SOOTAIOS [RUOTIBONPH-[BUOISSIJOI PISLydIng
:UOTIONI)SUT SWOH

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04

ANNA TVIINID

HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd

LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

Page 83



8069 891°0S1 9L0°LST 0€0°1 970951 SOOIAISS IS - SaIyIpuadxy panquusipu) [e30],
188°1 98%"y L9E'9 (£88) 0ST'L s[erdjeN pue sarpddng
0SLT 0SL1T 0SL1 SIOIAISS [BOIUYID ], pUB [BUOISSIJOIJ paseyding
LTOS TE6°Er] 6S6°8%1 €16°1 9v0°LY1 SoLIe[eS
:S901AISS YI[BIH - saamipuadxy paynqrusipun
Y6T°1 €18°1S LOT €S LOT'ES SHOA [BI00S PUEB SOUBPUSNY - SAINIPUSdXF panqrusipu [ejo],
Y6T°1 €18°1S LOT €S LOT'ES soLIe[eS
S[IOA [B100S 29 9OUBPUANY - SAIMIpudxy paynquusipun
8GS 1L w81 00006 00006 uonoNNSU] - SAINIPUadX pANqLISIpun [e10],
8089 4! 00059 00059 9181S I/ “dedrpueq] a3 103 [00YDS "AlId 03 UOHIN],
0SL9 0SL9 (0sT°81) 000°ST [er0adg-91e18 ot U SYHT JOYI0 03 uonIny,
0ST'81 0ST'81 0ST'81 Ie[NZaY-A)e)S U UGN SVHT IO 03 uonmy,
:uononNsu] - soanypuadxy paynqLisIpun
TP 8€T €1T°6€€°E STI'LLS'E PE1°801 164°69%°¢€ NOILLDOMYLSNI TVLOL
0TI 0TI1°C (08) 00T°C uonodnnsuy - [00YdS Jawung [ej0 ],
0TI°C 0TIC (08) 00T°C SIOUOBI, JO SoLIe[eS
1uondNIsuy - [00YdS IWWng
00€°1 08T°1 08S°C 08 00S°C surer3oId [00UDS I Y/21039¢ 810,
00€°1 08T°1 08S°C $ 08 $ 00S‘C $ SI9YJea [, JO saLre[es
:uononnsu] - sSweigold [00Y9S 191 y/210Jog
[enoy 0} [enioy 123png [eulq SIoJsueL], 128png [euISLIO
[eur] 9oUBLIBA 198png

11Joy
1-D NqIyxg

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04
ANNA TVIINID
HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd
LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

Page 84



¥LS°9¢ €v0°6ST LI9TIE (6L5) 961°C1¢
816T 8LST (zLn) 0SLC
79¢°¢1 1€T°11 €6SvT €656 000°ST
189 961 000°L 000°L
8I1°61 788°C 000°CT (000°01) 000°C¢€
€8T SP'6T 8T6°1€ 01C1 81L°0€
681°C1 6CE 11T 815°€TT o17°D 8TLYTT
986°C 1€S481 LIS°L8T ¥8T°¢ €ETHSI
€1y ¢y (Lgg) 0SL
986°C 8€6°cY v26°9% 6 S16°9t
081°0%1 081°0%1 T19°¢ 895°9¢1
096°9S T 0vS 96T 00S° €St 00S° €St
09%°€S T 0vS96T 000°0St 000°0St
00S°¢ 00S°¢ 00S°€
668°C€ 0SS IET 67 791 (L99°¢) 911°891
199°¢ r€9°1 S6T°S (S0L°T) 000°L
LOST 121y 8T6°S (cL6n) 006°L
1€¥°LT $  S6LSTI 9TT€ST 01 91T°¢ST $
[emyoy 01 [emoy 123png [eulq SIgJsuel], 128png [euISLIO
[eur aoueLIB A 198png

11jos
1-D NqIyxg

wed ], Apryg pliyD - saamipuadxy Isipun) [e30 L
$100[qQ 1010
s[erraleIA pue sarjddng
SIJIAIDS [BOIUYI ], PUB [RUOISSIJOIJ paseydind 110
SOOIAISS [eUONBONDH - [RUOISSJOIJ paseyaIng
SJUB)ISISSY [BOLID]D) pUB [BLIRJAIIAS JO SALIR[RS
JJe1S [eUOISSAJ0I] IOYI() JO SALIe[eS

‘wed I, Apmyg Iy - sormipuadxy paynqrusipuny

oouepIny) - saInyIpuadxy ISIpUn 810,
s[erra)eIA pue sa1jddng
SJUBJSISSY [BOLI])) PUE [BLIBJOIOAS JO SALIE[eS
JJe1S [euoIss9joId IO JO SoLIe[eS
:90uEpIN) - SoIMIpuddxy pAINqLISIpuN

sjuepm§ s991A19S 1oddng 1030 - seanyrpuadxy panqLisIpun (8107,
SOOTAIOS [BUOT)EONPA - [BUOISSQJOIJ PIsSeyoIng
soLIe[eS

:SjuapNMI§ $901A10S Hoddng 1oy3() - soamyrpuadxy panqLisipun

S9OI1AIRS Paje[aY ‘1d ‘1O Yooads - saxmypuadxy panqLisipun [e10],
selrateIA pue sa1jddng
SIJIAIOG [BUONBINDYH - [BUOISSIJOIJ PaseyoIng
saLre[es

:S9OTAIOS PATR[OY ‘Ld ‘LO U292dS - samirpuadxy panquusipun)

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04

ANNA TVIINID

HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd

LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

Page 85



T16°SY 91¢°881 8TTVET 8TTHET
610t 610 (18t) 00St
SeL 6vCy 786t 915D 00S°L
9 66 000°T 000°T
LLLT 01¥ 1 L8191 L8I1°T 0001
001°¢ 006 000 000y
6629 S8T€Cl 78561 Q1) 000°0C
Siy S8LY 00T°S 00T°S
000°C 000°C 000C
00S4C 00S4C 00S¥C
08S°1¢ €€T91 CIS'LY (L81°0) 000°0S
176401 Y6401 €Iv'e 8TS 101
607°C 16711 00L°€1 00L°CT
SOP°l €88°8 8Y€01 (¢s1°0) 00S°C1
41! 48! (880°1) 00T‘1
€8 80T ove'e ove'e
7ST'8S YEC Ty 985701 (009°01) 981°¢CI 1
9€8°L ¥84°C 0zT€01 (0s) 0LE0T
00¥ 0S¢y 0SLYy 0SS0y 00L
910°0S 00S°LE 915°L8 (009%1) 911201
8YT°1 €61°8L 1vh°6L 1¥h°6L
/YTl $  ¥8S €81 (891) 000°C
reee reee 16 vT6
SLT'89 SLT89 $  LL 861°89 $
[emyoy 01 [emoy 123png [eulq SIgJsuel], 128png [euISLIO
[eur aoueLIB A 198png

11309
1-D NqIyxg

UOHEBNSIUIWPY [BIUSD-5901A10S Hoddng-sarmipuadxy panquisipun) [e10],
599 pue son( diysioquidi 409
sormyipuadxy SNOUB[[AISIA
sa1jddng [erouan
(S8S 2 0ES UL} 100 SALIAS (()S-(0t) SINAINS YoINg IYIO

SOOIAIOS paseydIng Y10 40
suoyde(a [ /suonedrunumo))

SOOIAIOS [BUOISSJOIJ PIseydInd o0
S901AIOS SULISQUISUH/[BINON) YOIy
S99, 1pny
SQOIAIOG (B3]
soLIe[eS
JUONJRISIUTWPY [BIOUSD-S1AI0S 1oddng-saimipuadxyg paynquusipun

S9OIAISG Sururel], jjels [euononnsul-sarnpuadxyg panqrysipun) (1o,
(91195 )0S-00F) SIOIAIAS paseyaIng IYI0
90IAIOS [BUONIBONDYH - [BUOISSIJOI PaseyoIng
SaLIe[ES IOYI0

1$901AI0Q Sulurel], JJelS [euononnsu-saInirpuadxy panquuspun)

AIe1qIT [OOUOS/SOOIAIOS BIPIJA [BUOTIBONPH-PUSdXH ISIPUN) [BI0T,
serra)eIq pue sarddng
SOOTAIOG [BITUYD9 [, PUE [BUOISSIJOIJ PISeydIng
soLIe[eS

:ATRIQIT JOOYOS/SOITAIDS BIPIA [BUOTIBINDPH-SIMIPUAXF PajnqLysipun

SOOTAIOS [BUOT)ONISU] JO JududAoIdw] - saryrpuadxy paInquusIpun) [elo],
soLIe[eS 110
SJUBJSISSY [BOLIO])) PUE [BLIBJOIOIS JO SALIE[eS
uononysuy Jo s1osratodng jo sourees

IS9OTAIDS [euonONNSuT Jo JuswAoxdul] - saxmipuadxy ponqrnspun

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04

ANNA TVIINID

HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd

LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

Page 86



€€L9L 9Z0°9LT 6SL°TSE (0s€°L) 601°09¢
oLl 09T°6 00011 000°TT
890°79 LLT0ST SPETIT ($59°L) 000°02T
ST6°CI 687911 vIv'6C1 S0€ 601°6C1
10€°¢ 669°9T 000°0€ 000°0¢
628°11 628°11 628°11
10€°€ 0L8Y1 1L1°81 (6T8°11) 000°0¢€
[ ad! TT6EIT Y91°8C1 v91°8C1
€€6°T L90°T 000°S 000°S
L99°1 €8 00S°C 00S°C
00€ 00L 000°T 000°T
IL1°8 678°ST 000°%€ 000°t€
1.8 678°1 00LC 00L°C
00€ £99°C8 ¥96°C8 ¥96°C8
169°6 LYEOLY 8€0°081 8€0°081
$99°C SES°T 00T°S 00T°S
Yo'y Yor'y (9¢9) 000°S
00€ L8L'9E L8O°LE Ll S16°9¢
79T §  sToIgl L8TEET $  p9¢ €76l $
[emyoy 01 [emoy 123png [eulq SIgJsuel], 128png [euISLIO
[eur aoueLIB A 198png

1joL
1-D NqIyxg

SONI[IOR,] [00YDS I0F JUIR]A paImboy -sarjpuadxy poinqgusipun 810,
sarjddng [e1ouon
SQOIAIOG douBUUIBIA pue ‘Ireday ‘Fuiues])
soLIe[eg
:SONI[I0B,] (00O 10] doueUUIR[ PaIrnbay-somyrpuadxy panquysipun
SOOTAISS JUR[J JO 9OUBUUIEIN pue suonerodQ-sarmipuadxy panginsipun

A3o[outo9 ], U0NBULIOJU] UOIENSIUIWPY - SaImIpuadxq panqrysipun (1o,
s[errateIq pue sarjddng
(91198 )0S-00F) SIOIAIIS paseyaIng IYI0

:A30[0Ut09 ], UONBULIOJU] UOJEISIUTWPY - sarmIpuadxy panqrnsipun)

SOOIAIOS [ETUD)) - SOIMIIPUAAXH PIINQLISIPU() [€I0],
$100[qQ 1010
s[errateIq pue sarjddng
(65 ueyy IY)0 SIS ()0S-00F) SOIIAIIS PISEYIINJ SNOJUB[IISIA
SOOTAIOS [BITUYD9 ], PASEYdIng
SOOIAIOS [BUOISSJOIJ PIseydIng
soLe[es
:SQOTAIOG [eNUQ)) - SaImIpuadxy poInqrusIpun)

UOHEBNSIUIWPY [00YdS-5991A10S Hoddng-sarmpuadxy panquisipun [e10],
$100[qQ 1010
s[erateIq pue sarddng
SIUBJSISSY [BOLIO])) PUE [BLIBJOIOAS JO SALIE[eS
10302111 weidoid/siediourid juelsissy/sjediouLid Jo sale[es
:UONRISIUIWPY [00Y2S-Sa01AI0S oddng-saimipuadxyq paynquusipun

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04

ANNA TVIINID

HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd

LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

Page 87



0911 0L 81 000°€€T 000°€E T
000°0S 000°0S 000°0S
ovL'6Y 09¢ 000°0S 000°0S
000°¢ 000°¢ 000°€
0LT1 0€Ll 000°¢ 000°¢
0S¥l 0SS°L 000°6 000°6
00€ 00LYy 000°S 000C 000°€
00S°8 00S‘t 000°€T (0000 000°ST
LEL'LTY YE9°LTL 1L€°6S8 981°01 S8I°SH8
000°C1 000C1 000C1
000°CI 000CI 000°CI
¥00°6€ 809° ISt Z19°061 9¢5°S 9L0°S8%
S8y SI0°T 00S°1 00S°1
09L°S 0vT'S9 000°TL 000°TL
SeEL S91°19 00589 00S°8 000°09
6TS°8 6€1°1¢ 899°6C (zeg’s) 000°S¢€
9€0°08 9€0°08 9¢0°¢ 000°LL
8€8°C 91°LT 000°0T (0000 000°CC
(000°1) 000°T
201°1 868°8 000°01 000°01
818°C Wil 09671 09671
LET0T $  TI8PSI 8Y6' 761 §  TEET $  919C61
[emyoy 01 [emoy 123png [eulq SIgJsuel], 128png [euISLIO
[eur aoueLIB A 198png

11jo8
1-D NqIyxg

S901A10S uoneIodsuel], JuapniS-sarnirpuadxy panqLysIpu) (810,
SYS.LD 29 sOSH-(s1uapni§ uoneonpy [e109dg) $991AI0G J0BIUO))
SVSLD 2 sOSH-(s1uspmg 1e[n3ay) s991AIS 101U
SJUOWIAAIS Y JUIO[-(SIUIPNIS uoneonpy [e109dS) SIIIAISG J0BIUO))
SIUAWAAIB Y JUIO[-(JOOYOS 29 SWIOH UOMIQ) SIIIAIS "JORIIUO))
SIOPUS A-(JOOTOS 29 SWOH UM UBY) JIOY)()) SIIIAIIG JOBIUO))
SJUAPNIS AJ10Y))-SIUSWARJ JO NI UI PIY-SIITAIOS UOD)
s1prisS o1 qnduoN-sjuswAed JO NAIT Ul PIY - SOOIAIIS JOBRIIUO))

:S991AI0S uoneIodsueI] JuopmS-sarmrpuadxy panqrusipun

SOOIAIRS JUB[J JO 9OUBUSIUIE]A pue suonerddQ-sormyipuadxy peinqgrusipu) 1810,
spunoin) J0O deaydn puy a1e) [e10],
SOOIAIOS [BOIUYDS |, PUB [BUOISSIJOIJ PISLYoIng
:spunoip) jo doaxydn pue are)

SOOTAIOS TeIPOISN)-sarmyipuadxy poInqrusIpun) [e10],
$100[qQ 19Y10
(Ky101091q ) A310U7
(sen [eanyeN) A310ug
sarddng [erouon
doueInsuy
$901A10G A119do1d paseyoind 10yi0
SQOIAIOG douBUUIBIA pue ‘Ireday ‘Fuiues])
SOOIAIOS [EOTUYDS ], PUB [BUOISSJOIJ PISEYIIn
SOPIY [BUONONISU-UON JO SOLIB[ES
saLIe[eg
:S9OTAIAS [BIPOISND-SoIMIpuadXy paInqLysIpun)

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04
ANNA TVIINID

HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd

LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

Page 88



(LOS 0LY) CI6°1P6°S 909°1L1"8 696101 LEY69ES

(61L°80L) 00L°209°S 186°C68t (591°9) 9Ir1°006°Y

(0S6'P1¥1) LET'SET'E L8TI0TLT (618°9) 900°9CLT

(SP6°€E9°T) SH6EE9°T

(059°C82) 0S978C

(zep) (45%

(Foz'61) v0T'61

(LTgTTe) LTETTE

(ze€'600°T) TEE°600°T

S66°81¢ 761°105°1 L8I0TLT (618°¢) 900°97L°1

8£8°8T 91°1¥ 000°0L 000°0L

0L1 LSTY LTV 126 905°€

9 9 ¥6°8C 000°S€ 000°S€

L1581 0STOLIT L99°TSET (€£€20) 000°SLET
£6579 £6579 (Lot*9) 000°TL
000°ST 000°ST 000°ST

SLE S79°6 000°01 000°C 000°8

819 78¢€°L9 00089 (0007 000°0L

1€ § 6906 $ 00506 000°CT 005°89 $

_.m5uo< 0} ﬂm‘ao«% wowvsm _mﬂ_ L mu@%mcmur—i wowﬁsm _.mﬁ_wCO
?E A Do:mﬁm A uowwﬁm

11306
1-D NqIyxg

HSNAIXH INFIAND TVIANID TVLOL
SHINLIANAIXT d41NdIdLSIANN TVIOL
SLIJANHT HHAOTdINA - SHOIAYAS TYNOSYdd TVIOL

(@9195aNg-NON) SNOILNEIIINOD ATVHAE-NO TV.LOL
SUOTINQLIIUO)) AJLINJS [B100S JV I PISINqUIay
(p1e3png-uopN) aoueinsuy LA1iqesiq o 1 -3u0 AVd.L
(pa3e3png-uoN) 9oueinsu] £10)nqLIu0)-uoN AVd.L
(po1e3png-uoN) suonnqryuo)) uoisudd Jvd.L
(pa1e3png-uoN) suonnqriuo)) JuswaINay 1s0d AvVd.L

(@41a5ang-NON) SNOILNErIINOD ATVHAE-NO

SIIJANAd d4LVOOTIVNI TVIOL
J3eIS PoInaY/pajeuItiIo |, 03 JudwAed OIS posnur)
syyouag ookordwy IoyI0
JUSWIOSINQUITSY UONINT,
suyouag yIedH
uonesuadwo)) SIOIO A
uonesuadwo)) Juswkordwoun
Ie[ngoy - SUONNQLIUO)) JUSWAINY JOYI0
SYAd - SuonnqIIuo)) JUSWAINY I9YIO
suonnqLIuo)) AILINg9g [e100s

SLIHINAT A4LVOOTIVNN

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04

ANNA TVIINID
HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd
LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

Page 89



TSS°LT (zss°LD) ($01°59) (P01°59)
T8S°LT (zss°LD) ($01°59) (F01°59) PIV UOnEINpH [00YdSAId - JNO JJSUBL],
:(sas))/s201nog Surourul IoYI0
L66' V1T T SSETITT (2h9°T0T°1) (zs8'szn) (06L9L0°T) samyIpuadxy (19pU())/I0AQ SINUSASY JO (JIOG()/SSOXH
87S61¢ TEE1E0°6 088°05€°6 758°6TI 870°6TT6 SHINLIANAIXA TV.LOL
GS8°68L 61768 YLT6LS €88°¢€T 16€°6S8 AVILNO TVLIIdVD TV.IOL
GG8°68L 9€5°0S 16£°0¥8 16£°078 S3OIAISS UOLONISUO)) PUB UOHISINDOY SANI[IoE,] [BI0L
8 8 8 Surpun, y(JS U0 J0IAIS 1q(] 10J JUSWISSISSY
TLLLLL 9t°6 €€T'L8L (0s1°¢) €8€°06L SIOIAISS UOTONISUO))
0S¢ 008°C 0S1°E 0ST°E SOOIAIQ [EJIUNIS ], PUE [BUOISSAJOIJ PaseydInd JYiQ
9zL11 $  PLT'SE 000°0S 000°0S SOOIAISS FULISAUISUH/[BINIONYITY
:S9OIAIRS UONONISUO)) pue uonisiboy sanioe]
£88°8¢ £88°8¢ £88°¢T 000°ST yuswdimby rejo 1,
€0LTT €0LTT €0L°TT Aymdag - samyipuadxyg pajnqrusipun)
08S°CI 08S°CI (0¥ 000°ST $ spunoip) jo doaxd() pue a1e) - saxyipuadxy panqLysipun
panqrusipun
009°¢ 009°¢ $  009°€ 8-9 sopein
uowdibyg
AV1LNO TVLIdVD
[emyoy 01 [emoy 123png [eulq SIgJsuel], 128png [euISLIO
[eur aoueLIB A 198png

[1300I1

1-D NqIyxg

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04

ANNA TVIINID
HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd
LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

Page 90



Y0126

(cv8opD)

L88°190°S
9€€°01L
861°90¢

¥10°01¢
TTEY8Y
SIEY01T
920°T9¢€
9L9%89

6vSTHY'T  $  L88°T190°S

$

8€E619°C

$

(zss'szn) $  06ISHLT $

¥80°LLS‘E
6VS‘THY'T  §  €08YS8I‘L

$

¥80°LLS S
OPLLSTT)

$

¥80°LLS]‘E
(zss'szn) § (s IEI’)  §

[en)oy 0} [emoy
[eul,] 9OUBLIEA

113011
1-D NqIyxg

108png [eul]

SIoJsuel], 128png [euISLIO
198png

T20T "0€ ANNT AHANA AVAA TVOSId HHL J04
ANNA TVIINID
HTNAIHIS NOSTIVdINOD AdV1dDdnNd
LOMILSIA TOOHDS ADdrdd HOIH

(dvVvD) spuny [eruowiuidaon 1od souejeq pung

siseq JVVD UO paziugooay J0U SjuswAed pry 1elS ise|
((dVVD) JUSWIe)S Spun,] [BJUSWUIIAOL) 0} UOHEI[IOU00Y

ooueleq pun, paugisseun
SooUBIqUINOUL PUy J8d X
:90ueeq pun, poudissy
uonesuadwo)) Juswkordwoun
JAIOSOY QoUBUUIBIN
oAlesoy [ende)
€202-2720¢ 104 paoLsy - snjding ssadxy
¥70T-£20T 104 Pa3oLnsay - snding ssaoxy
:90uR[Rg pUN, POLISAY

Tuone[mIdedsy

0€ dung ‘douereqg pung
I A[nr “oouefeqg pung

sas) Juroueur] Ioy3Q pue saampuadxy (Jopu())/IoAQ
$90IN0S FUIOURUL] JAYIO PUE SINUIAY JO (JIOI(T)/SSIIXH

Page 91



-0- $ 9€T’S 9¢T'S $ 9€T°S $ -0- g saampuadxy (Jopu()) J9AQ S92IN0S SuIouRUI] oI PUB dNUIADY JO (ASUAIOYA(T) SSOIXH
S6T°LIO0T S6T°LIO0T (6%0°18) rrE860°T saxnyipuadxq [e10],
102°CS 102°CS (617°91) 0T¥°89 SOIAIOS UOTIONISUOY) PUE UOLISINDOY SANT[IoR] [2I0],
[€1°0t I€1°0% (68T°€1) 0ZH€s juowdmbyg [euononnsug
0L0°CI 0L0°CI (0€6'0) 000°G1 yuowdmbyg [euononnsur-uoN

:S9OIAIRS UONONNSUO)) pue uonIsmboy sanifoe]
859°L9% 859°L9Y €96°6¢S S60°C1Y $a01A10G 1oddng 10
8€1°9T 8€1°9C 8€1°9C SONIAT}OY JUOpMIS
766°1 ¥66°1 766°1 speuoIR pue sarjddng
€90°98 €90°98 €90°98 SOOIAIOG PaseyoId 19YI0
10¥°1C 10¥°1C (0€Z°s9) 1€9°08 SOOIAIOG [BOIUYIA ], 29 [BUOISSIJOIJ PISBYIINg
€98°9 £98°9% €989t SIJTAIOS [BUOT)BRONPH/[RUOISSIJOIJ paseyong
LTT €01 LTT°€0T (€16°19) 0€0°591 syjouag dakofduug
T80°T81 T80°C81 849°1¢C rEP091 JJeIS [BUOISSAJOIJ 19YIQ) JO SILIB[ES
:5901A10§ oddng
9¢t L6Y 9¢t L6Y (g6€°021) 678°L19 uononnsuy [e10],
000°ST 000°ST 000°ST SOOIAIDG paseyoId 19YI0
T0t'8T T0¥'8T (roz'on) 909°8¢ sorddng [eoeuon
L09‘9 L09°9 (€6€) 000°L SOOIAIOS [BUOIIBONPH PUB [BUOISSIJOI PISBYoIng
16€°S11 16€°S11 16€°ST1 UonONLSU] 10§ SILIB[ES JYIQ
9€0°TTE 9€0°TTE (L8T1°052) €TTULS SIOUOBO ], JO SOLIE[ES
;uononnsuy
:sormyrpuadxyg
1€5°C20°1 1€5°C20°1 (€18°6L) YHE860°1 $901M0g SuroURUL 1010 PUE SINUGANY [EI0],
TSS°LT TSSLT TSS'LT puny [BIdUD) - UONNQLIIUO)) pIeoq - U] JAJSueI],
:$901n0§ Suroueur Joyi0
6L6'766 6L6'766 (s9¢°c01) #7E°860°T SNUIAY [8I0],
650°08C 650°08C L6S LYT 91 el $90INOS [eIOPI]
95°€89 9¥5°€89 (9€€780) 788596 $ $32IN0S 8IS
vLETE vLETE $ YLETE $ SO0INOS [8007]
IONUIADY
[enOY 03 [eur [eoYy 13png SIoJsuel], 13png
J0UBLIBA reury 193png [euiSLQO

-0 nqryxg

T20T "0€ ANNI AIANT IVHA TVOSId HHL 404
ANNA HNONIAHY TVIOddS

SISVE AdV.LADANY - HTNAFHIS NOSIIVJINOD Adv.1dHdNd

LOIILSIA TOOHDS dDdrdd HOIH

Page 92



Exhibit C-3
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE
NOTE TO RSI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures:

General Special Revenue
Fund Fund

Sources/Inflows of Resources:
Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Revenue"

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 10,243,687 $ 1,022,531
Differences - Budget to GAAP:

Budgetary basis recognizes Encumbrances as Revenue and Expenditures
whereas theGAAP Basis does not. (686)
Prior Year State Aid Payments Recognized for GAAP Statements, not

Recognized for Budgetary Purposes 137,204 71,799
Current Year State Aid Payments Recognized for Budgetary Purposes, not

Recognized for GAAP Statements (140,843) (90,922)
Total Revenues as Reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds. $ 10,240,048 $ 1,002,722

Uses/Outflows of Resources:
Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Total Outflows" from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 9,031,332 $ 1,017,295
Differences - Budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes. (686)

Total Expenditures as Reported on the Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 9,031,332 $ 1,016,609

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue, and debt service

funds. The budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was submitted to the County office and was approved by a

vote of the Board of Education. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level
budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest of (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)]1.
Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year. All budgetary
amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect the original budget and the amended budget
(which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the
year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and
generally accepted accounting principles, with the exception of the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund
types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis except in student
activities. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenue, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental
records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The General Fund and Special Revenue Fund budgetary revenue differs from the GAAP revenue due to a difference in the

recognition of the last two state aid payments for the current year. Since the State is recording the last two state aid payments
in the subsequent fiscal year, the District cannot recognize these payments on the GAAP financial statements.
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SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES
(NOT APPLICABLE)
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Page 95



8¢1°9T $ 968°C0L $ 1686 $  00C°1 $  6LLES $  00¥°8 $ 20T'8 $
10T°CS
1€1°0%
0L0°CT
8€1°9C T60°1€T 768°6 91G°T1 v16C 70T8
8€1°9C
L19
70T8
00LY
70€°63 66801 ¥16°C
88L°1¥1 ¥61°S
€09°61% 0021 €9T°TH 98%°S
81L°ST 00T°1
L099
16€°STT
L88TILT €9T°Ty 98%°S
YLETE 968°T0L 768°6 00T'T 6LL'ES 00%'8 70T
TSS°LT
PLETE YrESLY 7686 00C°1 6LL'ES 00t°8 70T8
7686 $  00T°1 $  6LLES $  00+'8 $
PrESLY $ 0T'8 $
PLETE $
SINIANOY pry uoneonpy AL PBLL 111 9BLL VII3pLL 19BLL SdUBUAUIBIN
JuopmI§ [ooyosarg 10V UOIeONpH AIepuoddsS pue AIejuowd[yg [ende)) pue spaoN
wadowy - Auoyiny
juowdo[oas [00Y0S
20T 0€ ANNI AIANd IVHA TVOSId dHL JO4
SISVd AdVLdOANd - SHYNLIANAdXH ANV ANNIATT 40 ATNAAHOS DNINIFNOD
ANNd HNNTAHYE TVIOAdS
LOTYLSIA TOOHDS d5dIdd HOIH
ciol

1-d nqxg

Page 96

sormpuadxy (el

SOJIAIS UOIONNSUO)) PUE UOHISINbOY sani[Ioe] [e10],

juswdmby [euononnsuy
juowdmbd [euOnONNSU-UON

1SOOIAIOS UONONIISUO)) PuE UoNISINbIY SanI[Ioe,|

so01AI2S Woddng [e10],

SINIANOY JUSpmS

sreud)elq pue sarddng

SOOIAIOS paseyoInd Joyi0

SOOIAIOG [BOIUYII], 29 [BUOISSAJOI PIseydIng

SOOIAIOG [BUONEONPH/[BUOISSOJOI] POseyoIng

syjouag d9ko1dwyg

JJe1S [BUOISS9J01d 1Y) JO SaLIe[es
:5091A104 310ddng

uonoNISuJ [0,

sarjddng erouon
SOOIAIOS paseyoInd Joyi0
SOJIAIOS [BUOTIBONPH PUB [BUOISSOJOI PaseyoIng
uonoNISu] Joj sALIe[eS Y10
SIOUOBI ] JO SOLIE[eS
‘uorjonysuy

SHINLIANAdXH

$09IN0S SUIdUBUL] IO PUEB SINUIADY [BIOL

puny [eIdUdL) - UONNQLIUOY) PIeoq - U] JOJSuBIL]

:001n0g Suroueul 1OYQO

SNUASY [BIO],

SO0INOS [LIOPI,]
$90IN0S 9)eIS
SO0INOS [800]

HANFATY



S6TLI0T $

10L°91

£98°89

605°S

€EL9L $  00L9C $

08I $

102°CS

1€1°0¥
0L0°CI

859°L9¥

10,91

£98°cy

LLEY

€€L9L 00€4C

8T6°11

8€1°9C
¥66°1
£90°98
10¥°1¢
£98°0%
L1T°€01
780°C81

10L°91

£98°cy

LLE'T

000°¢

€EL9L

00€vT

8TI‘1

008°01

9¢er L6V

000°ST

€Il

00%°C

[43%

T0t°8C
000°ST
L09°9
16€°GT1
9€0°TTE

000°ST

el

00t°C

[43%

1€5°C20°1

10L°91

£98°89

605°S

€€L9L 00L°9C

08T°Cl

TSs°LT

6L6166

10,91

£98°89

60S°S

€€L9L 00L°9C

08T°Cl

650°08¢
9589
YLETE $

10,91

$

£98°89

$

60S°S

$

€€L9L $  00L°9C $

08Tl $

T20T ‘0 dunyf
N

730z
[-d Nqryxe

J00ysaIg
VaIardadyv

oiseq ‘g Hed
VAAL

100ydSa1
VHal

11 ¥3SSq Surued|
PIIRID[AOOY

esH
BTN

"Y'V - PIV UODEZI[IqelS UODEINpA

220T "0€ ANNI AAANd dVAA TVOSId dH.L 404

SISVE AdV.LADdN4 - SHINLIANAdXH ANV HONFATY 40 ATNAIHDS ONINIHINOD

ANNA HNNFAHY TVIOIdS

LOIILSIA TOOHDS 45dIdd HOIH

Page 97

sormpuadxy (el

SOOIAIDG UOHONIISUO)) PUE UOHISINDIY SANI[108,] (10,

juawdmby [euononnsuy
juowdmby [euOnONNSU-UON

1SOOIAIOS UONONIISUO)) PuE UonISINbIy SanI[Ioe,|

So01AI0S 1oddng [e10],

SINIANOY JUSpmS

sreud)elq pue sarddng

SOOIAIOS paseyoIngd Joyi0

SOOIAIOG [BOIUYIJ], 29 [BUOISSAJOI PIseYIINg

SOOIAIOG [BUONEONPH/[BUOISSOJOI] POSeyoIng

syjouag d9kojdwyg

JJe1S [BUOISS9J01d 1Y) JO SaLIe[es
:5091A104 310ddng

uonoNISuJ [BI0],

sarjddng 1erouon
SOOIAIOS paseyoIngd Joyi0
SOOIAIOS [BUOTIBONPH PUB [BUOISSOJOIJ PaseyoInd
uononysuy 10y saLre[es Ioyi0
SIOUOBI ] JO SOLIE[eS
‘uononysuy

SHINLIANAdXH

$09IN0S SUIdUBUL] IO PUEB SINUIADY [BIOL

puny [eIdUdL) - UONNQLIUOY) PIeoq - U] JOJSuBlL]

:001n0g Suroueul 1OYO

ONUASY [BIO],

SO0INOS [LIOPI,]
$90IN0S 9)8IS
SO0INOS [800]

HANIATY



HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

District-Wide Total

Exhibit E-2

Budgeted Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers $ 360,498 $ 271,887 $ 88,611
Other Salaries for Instruction 175,000 115,391 59,609
Purchased Professional and Educational Services 7,000 6,607 393
General Supplies 38,000 25,718 12,282
Total Instruction 580,498 419,603 160,895
Support Services:
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 151,934 141,788 10,146
Employee Benefits 165,030 89,304 75,726
Total Support Services 316,964 231,092 85,872
Equipment:
Non-Instructional Equipment 15,000 12,070 2,930
Instructional Equipment 53,420 40,131 13,289
Total Equipment 68,420 52,201 16,219
Total Expenditures $ 965,882 $ 702,896 $ 262,986

CALCULATION OF BUDGET & CARRYOVER

Total Revised 2021-2022 Preschool Education Aid Allocation §
Add: Actual Preschool Expansion Aid Carryover (June 30, 2021)

Add: Budgeted Transfer from General Fund

Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2021-2022 Budget

Less: 2021-2022 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (Including

prior year budgeted carryover)

Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2022

Add: June 30, 2022 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid
2021-2022 Carryover - Preschool Education Aid  $

2021-2022 Preschool Education Aid Carryover
Budgeted for Preschool Programs in 2022-2023 $

881,664
185,931
27,552

1,095,147

(965,882)

129,265
262,986
392,251

392,251
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
(NOT APPLICABLE)
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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Exhibit G-1
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 49,338
Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable:
State 256
Federal 14,784
Interfund Receivable 24,428
Inventories 6,629
Total Current Assets 95,435
Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:
Equipment 176,844
Accumulated Depreciation (172,302)
Total Non-Current Assets 4,542
Total Assets 99,977
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable- Vendors 7,612
Unearned Revenue - Donated Commodities 2,320
Unearned Revenue - Prepaid Sales 1,693
Total Liabilities 11,625
NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,542
Unrestricted 83,810
Total Net Position $ 88,352
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Exhibit G-2
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Operating revenue
Local Sources:
Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Sales $ 6,400

Total Operating Revenue 6,400

Operating Expenses:

Cost of Sales - Reimbursable Programs 76,851
Salaries, Benefits & Payroll Taxes 50,417
Supplies, Insurance & Other Costs 1,565
Management Fee 7,417
Depreciation 1,357
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,361
Total Operating Expenses 138,968
Operating (Loss) (132,568)

Non-Operating Revenue
Local Sources:

Interest Income 25
State Sources:
COVID 19 - Seamless Summer Option 3,286
Federal Sources:
COVID 19 - Seamless Summer Option 184,652
Other Nutrition Programs -
COVID 19 - Pandemic/Electronic Benefits Transfer Administrative Reimbursement 1,242
Food Distribution Program 9,130
Total Non-Operating Revenue 198,335
Change in Net Position 65,767
Net Position - Beginning of Year 22,585
Net Position - End of Year $ 88,352
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Exhibit G-3
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-Type

Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Receipts from Customers $ 6,400

Payments to Food Service Vendor (127,715)
Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities (121,315)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:

State Sources 3,487

Federal Sources 153,646
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 157,133
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Interest Income 25
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 25
Cash Flows (Used for) Capital Financing Activities:

Acquisition of Capital Assets (5,028)
Net Cash (Used for) Capital Financing Activities (5,028)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 30,815
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 18,523
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 49,338
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities:

Operating Loss $ (132,568)

Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Loss to Cash (Used for) Operating Activities:

Depreciation 1,357
Food Distribution Program 9,130
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) in Inventory (3,868)
Increase in Accounts Payable 4,117
Increase in Unearned Revenue - Donated Commodities 1,252
(Decrease) in Unearned Revenue - Prepaid Sales (735)
Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities $ (121,315)

Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:
The Food Service Enterprise Fund received and utilized commodities from the Federal Food Distribution Program
valued at $10,372 and $9,130, respectively, the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.
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FIDUCIARY ACTIVITIES
(NOT APPLICABLE)
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LONG-TERM DEBT
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REVENUE:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
State Sources:
Debt Service Aid Type II

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Regular Debt Service:
Interest
Redemption of Principal

Total Regular Debt Service
Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue
Over/(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Exhibit [-4

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ 453,463 $ 453,463 $ 453,463
78,287 78,287 78,287
531,750 531,750 531,750
116,750 116,750 116,750
415,000 415,000 415,000
531,750 531,750 531,750
531,750 531,750 531,750
-0- -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- -0-
$ -0- $ -0- $ -0- -0-
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

This part of the District’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required
supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health.

Contents
Exhibit
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the District's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. J-1 thru J-5

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the District's ability to generate its property taxes. J-6 thru J-9

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the District's ability
to issue additional debt in the future. J-10 thru J-13

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the District's financial activities take
place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments. J-14 thru J-15

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the District's operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the District's financial information
relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs. J-16 thru J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual
comprehensive financial report for the relevant year.
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Exhibit J-5
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND - OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
UNAUDITED
Refund Prior
Fiscal Year Interest on Year
Ending June 30, Investments Expenditures Tuition Miscellaneous Total

2013 $ 1,351 $ 11,505 $ 142,770 $ 84,736 $ 240,362
2014 1,548 19,683 142,770 19,842 183,843
2015 2,047 125,491 14,665 142,203
2016 2,351 150,729 57,571 210,651
2017 2,372 96,990 9,722 109,084
2018 9,934 75,684 1,150 86,768
2019 12,385 166,837 84,654 263,876
2020 9,441 31,418 3,162 44,021
2021 1,263 33,996 109,758 145,017
2022 3,600 29,500 89,240 122,340

Source: High Bridge School District Financial Reports
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

Exhibit J-7

LAST TEN YEARS
(RATE PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE)
UNAUDITED
High Bridge Borough School District
Direct Rate Overlapping Rates
General Total Direct
Obligation Regional and
Year Ended Debt School High Bridge Hunterdon Overlapping
December 31, Basic Rate * Service" Total Direct District Borough Library County Tax Rate
2012 $ 1.30 $ 0.15 $ 1.45 $ 0.54 $ 0.82 0.03 $ 0.34 $ 3.17
2013 1.36 0.15 1.51 0.62 0.84 0.03 0.33 3.33
2014 1.47 0.13 1.60 0.60 0.88 0.03 0.33 3.43
2015 1.63 0.13 1.76 0.58 0.93 0.03 0.40 3.71
2016 1.66 0.13 1.80 0.60 0.98 0.03 0.40 3.81
2017 1.90 0.14 2.03 0.38 1.03 0.40 3.85
2018 1.99 0.14 2.13 0.39 1.03 0.42 3.96
2019 2.07 0.14 2.21 0.44 1.05 0.43 4.13
2020 2.11 0.14 2.24 0.44 1.05 0.40 4.13
2021 2.13 0.13 2.26 0.47 1.05 0.40 4.18
Source: Municipal Tax Collector and School Business Administrator
Note: NIJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to other

components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth

limitation calculation.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the

Net Valuation Taxable.

b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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Taxpayer

HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

UNAUDITED

1742 Square Associates LTD
XP Power LLC

Bitow Enterprises LLC
Sentinel Self Storage
Perotti Farm LLC
Luvavan LLC
Individual Taxpayer #1
Individual Taxpayer #2
Individual Taxpayer #3
Individual Taxpayer #4
Total

Taxpayer

1742 Square Associates LTD
Glassman Family Realty LLC
Bitnow Enterprises LLC
Individual Taxpayer #1

Country Club Self Storage, LLC

Individual Taxpayer #2
Individual Taxpayer #3
Individual Taxpayer #4
Individual Taxpayer #5
Individual Taxpayer #6

Total

Note: Individual taxpayers in 2021 and 2012 may be different.

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

Exhibit J-8

2021
Taxable % of Total
Assessed District Net
Value Assessed Value
$ 6,215,700 1.89%
2,973,200 0.90%
1,745,700 0.53%
1,690,100 0.51%
1,187,100 0.36%
1,078,000 0.33%
1,025,000 0.31%
909,900 0.28%
848,400 0.26%
838,700 0.25%
$ 18,511,800 5.62%
2012
Taxable % of Total
Assessed District Net
Value Assessed Value
$ 2,695,100 0.71%
2,400,000 0.63%
2,071,900 0.55%
1,751,400 0.46%
1,706,000 0.45%
1,112,000 0.29%
887,100 0.23%
832,500 0.22%
846,000 0.22%
787,100 0.21%
$ 15,089,100 3.99%
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Exhibit J-9
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the

a

Levy
Fiscal Year Ended Taxes Levied for Collections in
June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount Percentage of Levy Subsequent Years
2013 $ 5,391,565 $ 5,391,565 100.00% -0-
2014 5,467,998 5,467,998 100.00% -0-
2015 5,736,139 5,736,139 100.00% -0-
2016 5,829,372 5,829,372 100.00% -0-
2017 5,937,817 5,937,817 100.00% -0-
2018 5,808,499 5,808,499 100.00% -0-
2019 6,565,706 6,565,706 100.00% -0-
2020 6,832,760 6,832,760 100.00% -0-
2021 7,020,901 7,020,901 100.00% -0-
2022 7,152,466 7,152,466 100.00% -0-

Source: High Bridge School District records including the Certificate and Report of
School Taxes (A4F form)

a. School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New
Jersey State Statute, a municipality is required to remit to the school
district the entire property tax balance, in the amount voted upon or certified
prior to the end of the school year.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Exhibit J-10

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Governmental
Activities
General Percentage of
Fiscal Year Obligation Personal Income
Ended June 30, Bonds Total District ! Per Capita *
2013 $ 4,955,000 $ 4,955,000 1.84% 1,383
2014 4,695,000 4,695,000 1.67% 1,315
2015 4,410,000 4,410,000 1.53% 1,242
2016 4,110,000 4,110,000 1.38% 1,159
2017 3,795,000 3,795,000 1.26% 1,073
2018 3,460,000 3,460,000 1.14% 999
2019 3,105,000 3,105,000 0.99% 908
2020 2,730,000 2,730,000 0.85% 806
2021 2,335,000 2,335,000 0.69% 652
2022 1,920,000 1,920,000 0.56% 536

Source: School District Financial Reports

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the
financial statements.
a See Exhibit J-14 for personal income and population data.
These ratios are calculated using personal income and
population for the prior calendar year.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Percentage of

Exhibit J-11

General Net General Net Valuation
Fiscal Year Obligation Bonded Debt Taxable * of
Ended June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Per Capita b

2013 4,955,000 -0- $§ 4,955,000 1.314% 1,383
2014 4,695,000 -0- 4,695,000 1.259% 1,315
2015 4,410,000 -0- 4,410,000 1.211% 1,242
2016 4,110,000 -0- 4,110,000 1.143% 1,159
2017 3,795,000 -0- 3,795,000 1.148% 1,073
2018 3,460,000 -0- 3,460,000 1.050% 999
2019 3,105,000 -0- 3,105,000 0.943% 908
2020 2,730,000 -0- 2,730,000 0.828% 806
2021 2,335,000 -0- 2,335,000 0.701% 652
2022 1,920,000 -0- 1,920,000 0.571% 536

Source: School District Financial Reports

Note:

Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
a See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data. This ratio is calculated using valuation data for the prior

calendar year.
b See Exhibit J-14 for population data. This ratio is calculated using population for the prior

calendar year.
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Exhibit J-12
HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

UNAUDITED
Estimated Estimated Share
Debt Percentage of Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable * Debt
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes:
High Bridge Borough $ 9,088,653 100.00% § 9,088,653
North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District Debt 7,545,000 1.63% 348,841
Hunterdon County General Obligation Debt 96,226,693 1.66% 1,597,363
Subtotal, Overlapping Debt 11,034,857
High Bridge School District Direct Debt 1,920,000
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 12,954,857

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Hunterdon County Board of
Taxation; debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
residents and businesses of High Bridge. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to
issue and repay long-term, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.
However this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each
overlapping unit.

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable equalized
property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's
equalized property value that is within the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total equalized property
value.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED

Hunterdon County
Per Capita Personal

b
Income

Total County

Exhibit J-14

Unemployment

Year Population * Personal Income °
2013 3,583 75,215 269,495,345 8.40%
2014 3,569 78,862 281,458,478 5.50%
2015 3,551 80,981 287,563,531 5.40%
2016 3,546 83,763 297,023,598 4.70%
2017 3,536 84,912 300,248,832 4.30%
2018 3,462 87,934 304,427,508 3.80%
2019 3,418 91,946 314,271,428 3.80%
2020 3,388 95,088 322,158,144 9.40%
2021 3,584 95,088 ** 340,795,392 5.70%
2022 3,584 * 95,088 ** 340,795,392 H** N/A

*

- Latest Hunterdon County per capita personal income available (2021) was used for calculation

purposes.

** _ Latest population data available (2020) was used for calculation purposes.

**% _ Latest County Personal Income data available (2021) was used for calculation purposes.

N/A

Source:

* Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
b

¢ Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita

¢ Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development

- Information unavailable.

Per Capita Personal Income provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development

personal income presented
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE

Exhibit J-19

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year High Bridge Elementary High Bridge Middle
Ended June 30, School School
2013 $ 149,600 168,698 318,298
2014 60,045 67,710 127,755
2015 57,806 65,185 122,991
2016 143,593 168,705 312,298
2017 67,743 87,745 155,488
2018 234,456 131,831 366,287
2019 175,110 98,499 273,609
2020 111,380 216,208 327,588
2021 188,062 137,088 325,150
2022 126,915 149,111 276,026

Source: High Bridge School District records
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HIGH BRIDGE BOARD OF EDUCATION

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Commercial Package Policy - School Alliance Insurance Fund:

PROPERTY SECTION:

Blanket Building and Contents (fund limit)

Accounts Receivable

Automobile Physical Damage

Builders Risk

Electronic Data Processing Equipment
LIABILITY SECTION:

Comprehensive General Liability

Automobile Liability

Employee Benefit Liability
EXCESS LIABILITY:

Excludes School Board Legal Liability
CRIME:

Blanket Employee Dishonesty

Forgery

Theft/Disappearance/Destruction:

Inside
Outside
Computer Fraud
Funds Transfer Fund

Chartis (SAIF):
SCHOOL BOARD LEGAL LIABILITY

ACE American Insurance Company (SAIF):
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPAIRMENT LIABILITY:
Limit of Liability:
Incident

Fund Annual Aggregate

WORKERS' COMPENSATION (SAIF):
(a) Statutory Benefits
(a) Employer's Liability

Supplemental Coverage (optional)

RLI Insurance Company:
Public Employees' Faithful Performance Blanket Position Bond -
Business Administrator - John Jennings
Treasurer - Judy Favino

Exhibit J-20

Coverage Deductible

$ 500,000,000 2,500

2,500,000 2,500

In Blanket Limit 1,000

25,000,000 2,500

In Blanket Limit 2,500
5,000,000
5,000,000

5,000,000 1,000
5,000,000

500,000 1,000

50,000 1,000

50,000 1,000

50,000 1,000

50,000 1,000

50,000 1,000

5,000,000 5,000

1,000,000 10,000
25,000,000
Included
5,000,000
Included
200,000
200,000
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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Mount Arlington, NJ
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‘ ASSURANCE - TAX - ADVISORY 973.298.8500

nisivoccia.com

/

Independent Member
BKR International

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

High Bridge School District

County of Hunterdon, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey (the “Office”), the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the High
Bridge School District, in the County of Hunterdon (the "District") as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2022. That report included a qualified opinion
on the financial statements as the District’s note disclosure on postemployment benefits other than pensions
(OPEB) contains the June 30, 2020 information and not the June 30, 2021 information as the report for
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for the State of New Jersey State Health Benefits Local
Education Retired Employees Plan (“SHBP”) has not been released by the Division of Pensions and Benefits,
Department of the Treasury, State of New Jersey, as of the date of this report. In our opinion, disclosure of this
information is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Page 132



K-1
20f2
The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
High Bridge School District
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

October 31, 2022 NISIVOCCIA LLP
Mount Arlington, New Jersey

Frances Qom %A/WM LLF
Francis Jofles v

Licensed Public School Accountant #1154
Certified Public Accountant
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Report on Compliance For Each Major State Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by NJOMB 15-08

Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

High Bridge School District

County of Hunterdon, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program
Opinion on Each Major State Program

We have audited the High Bridge School District’s (the District’s) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State
Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the District’s major state
programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,2022. The District's major state programs is identified in the summary
of auditors' results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey’s OMB Circular
15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid. Our responsibilities
under those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08 are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the District’s federal and
state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the District’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing
Standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08 will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher
than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District’s compliance
with the requirements of each major state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and
New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08, we

+ exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

+ identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

+ obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance
or New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 31, 2022 NISIVOCCIA LLP
Mount Arlington, New Jersey

Frances Qﬁm ol Noasroccsn LLP
Francis Joits v

Licensed Public School Accountant #1154
Certified Public Accountant
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards includes the federal and state grant
activity of the Board of Education, High Bridge School District under programs of the federal and state
governments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The information in these schedules are presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”) and New
Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.
Because the schedules present only a selected portion of the operations of the District, they are not intended to
and do not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the District.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are reported
on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented on the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the District’s
basic financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Negative amounts, if any, shown on the Schedules represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary
comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to
demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to
be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year
or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception of
the revenue recognition of the last two state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant
to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes these payments are not recognized until the subsequent budget
year due to the state deferral and recording of the last two state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special
revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenue, whereas the GAAP basis does
not. The special revenue fund also does not recognize the June state aid payments in the current year. Grant
revenue in the capital projects fund is recognized on the budgetary basis in the fiscal year of award but is not
recognized on the GAAP basis until expended and submitted for reimbursement.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($3,639) for the general fund and

($21,809) for the special revenue fund of which ($2,000) was for local grants. See Note 1D for a reconciliation
of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and the special revenue funds.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

K-5

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(Continued)

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS (Cont’d)

Revenue from federal and state awards are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as

presented below:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 3,452,079 $ 3,452,079
Special Revenue Fund $ 314,480 627,316 941,796
Debt Service Fund 78,287 78,287
Enterprise Fund 195,024 3,286 198,310
Total $ 509,504 $ 4,160,968 $ 4,670,472

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and state

financial reports.

NOTE 5. OTHER

Revenue and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value received
and current year distributions respectively. TPAF Social Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed
by the State for the employers’ share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2022.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Summary of Auditors' Results:

- The Independent Auditors’ Report expresses qualified opinion on the financial statements as the District’s
note disclosure on postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) contains the June 30, 2020
information and not the June 30, 2021 information as the report for Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, for the State of New Jersey State Health Benefits Local Education Retired Employees Plan
(“SHBP”) has not been released by the Division of Pensions and Benefits, Department of the Treasury, State
of New Jersey, as of the date of this report. In our opinion, disclosure of this information is required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

- There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial
statements as reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards.

- No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the District which would be required
to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

- There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over major state programs
disclosed during the audit as reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance For Each Major
State Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance required by NJOMB-15-08.

- The auditor’s report on compliance for the major state programs for the District expresses an unmodified
opinion on all major state programs.

- The audit did not disclose any audit findings which are required to be reported in accordance with New
Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08 or 2CFR 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

- The District was not subject to the single audit provisions of the Uniform Guidance for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022 as federal grant expenditures were less than the single audit threshold of $750,000 identified
in the Uniform Guidance.

- The District's state programs tested as major programs for the current fiscal year were the following:

Assistance Listing/ Award Budgetary
Grant Number Grant Period Amount Expenditures
State Programs:
Equalization Aid 22-495-034-5120-078  7/1/21-6/30/22 $ 1,050,682 $ 1,050,682
School Choice Aid 22-495-034-5120-068  7/1/21-6/30/22 33,630 33,630
Special Education Aid 22-495-034-5120-089  7/1/21-6/30/22 275,401 275,401
Security Aid 22-495-034-5094-084  7/1/21-6/30/22 34,384 34,384

- The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and Type B state programs was $750,000.
- The single audit threshold identified in New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08 was $750,000.

- The District was determined to be a "low-risk" auditee for state programs.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements which are required to be Reported in Accordance with Generally
Accepted Government Auditing Standards:

- The audit did not disclose any findings required to be reported under Generally Accepted Government
Auditing Standards.

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards:

- Not applicable since expenditures of Federal awards were below the single audit threshold.

Findings and Questioned Costs for State Awards:

- The audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs for state awards as defined in New Jersey’s OMB
Circular 15-08 or 2CFR 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.
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HIGH BRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Status of Prior Year Findings:

There were no prior period audit findings.
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